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THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF MESILLA WILL HOLD A REGULAR BOARD 
MEETING ON MONDAY, FEBRUARY 12, 2018 AT 6:00 P.M. IN THE BOARD ROOM OF THE 
MESILLA TOWN HALL.   
 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

2. ROLL CALL & DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 

3. CHANGES/APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

4. PRESENTATION: Certificate of Commendation to Mr. Matthew Rivera for outstanding 
performance in assisting a child in distress at Zia Middle School. – Nora L. 
Barraza/Marshal K.C. Alberg. (added 2/9/18 at 3:00 pm) 
 

5. PUBLIC INPUT – The public is invited to address the Board for up to 3 minutes.   

6. *APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA – The Board will be asked to approve by one 
motion the following items of recurring or routine business. The Consent Agenda 
is marked with an asterisk *: 
 

a. *BOT MINUTES – Regular Meeting of Monday, January 22, 2018. 
 

b. *PZHAC Case 060685 w/conditions – a property just west of 2230 Calle del Sur, 
submitted by Steven Cadena; a request for a building permit to construct a dwelling at 
this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR).  

 

c. *PZHAC Case 060686 – 2615 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by Ouida Touchon; a 
request to for a building permit to construct an adobe wall on the property line at this 
address. Zoned: Historical Residential.  

 

d. *PZHAC Case 060683 – 2750 Boldt Street, submitted by Solar Smart Living for 
Jerome Walker, a request for a building permit to allow the installation of solar photo-
voltaic panels on the roof of a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential 
(HR). 

 

7. NEW BUSINESS: 
 

a. For acceptance: Town of Mesilla Audit report for fiscal year 2016-2017. – Erick 
Robinson, Integrity Accounting and Consulting. 
 

b. Presentation/Discussion: regarding cost of living increases for staff. – Cynthia 
Stoehner-Hernandez, Clerk/Treasurer. 
 

c. Resolution 2018-01: A resolution authorizing and approving submission of a 
completed application for financial assistance and project approval to the New Mexico 
Finance Authority. – Debbie Lujan, Public Works Director. 
 

d. Resolution 2018-02: A resolution authorizing the Finance Department to write off bad 
debt/accounts receivables. – Cynthia Stoehner-Hernandez, Clerk/Treasurer. 

 
 

8. *STAFF REPORTS: 
 

Community Development 
Community Programs 
Finance Department 
Fire Department 
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Marshal’s Department 
Public Works Department 
 

9. BOARD OF TRUSTEE/ STAFF COMMENTS 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

NOTICE 

If you need an accommodation for a disability to enable you to fully participate in the hearing or 
meeting, please contact us at 524-3262 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. The Mayor and 
Trustees request that all cell phones be turned off or set to vibrate. Members of the audience are 
requested to step outside the Board Room to respond to or to conduct a phone conversation.  A 
copy of this agenda can be found online at www.mesillanm.gov.  You may request to be added 
to the Mesilla Agenda E-Mailing list by calling or e-mailing Cynthia Stoehner-Hernandez, 
Clerk/Treasurer, at 524-3262 or cynthias-h@mesillanm.gov. 
  
Posted 2/7/18 Revised and reposted at 3:00 PM on 2/9/18 at the following locations: Town Clerk’s 
Office 2231 Avenida de Mesilla, Public Safety Building 2670 Calle de Parian, Mesilla Community 
Center 2251 Calle de Santiago, Shorty’s Food Mart 2290 Avenida de Mesilla, Ristramnn Chile 
Co., 2531 Avenida de Mesilla and the U.S. Post Office 2253 Calle de Parian. 
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES 6 
TOWN OF MESILLA 7 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 8 
MONDAY, JANUARY 22, 2018 9 

6:00 P.M. 10 
 11 
TRUSTEES:  Nora L. Barraza, Mayor 12 
 Carlos Arzabal, Mayor Pro Tem 13 
 Jesus Caro, Trustee 14 
 Linda L. Flores, Trustee 15 
 Stephanie Johnson-Burick, Trustee (absent/excused) 16 
 17 
STAFF: Cynthia Stoehner-Hernandez, Town Clerk/Treasurer 18 
 K.C. Alberg, Marshal 19 
 Kevin Hoban, Fire Chief 20 
 Debbie Lujan, Public Works Director 21 
 Gloria Maya, Recorder 22 
 23 
PUBLIC:  24 
 25 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 26 
Mayor Barraza led the Pledge of Allegiance. 27 
 28 

2. ROLL CALL & DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 29 
Roll Call. 30 
Present: Mayor Barraza, Mayor Pro Tem Arzabal, Trustee Caro, Trustee Flores. 31 
 32 
 33 

3. CHANGES/APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 34 
Motion: To approve agenda, Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Arzabal, Seconded by Trustee 35 
Flores.   36 
 37 
Roll Call Vote: Motion passed (summary: Yes = 3). 38 
Mayor Pro Tem Arzabal   Yes 39 
Trustee Caro   Yes 40 
Trustee Flores   Yes 41 
 42 

4. CLOSED SESSION – pursuant to NMSA 1978 Chapter 10-15-1(H)(2): discussion of 43 
limited personnel matters for the hiring of employees in the Public Works Department. – 44 
Nora L. Barraza, Mayor. 45 

 46 
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Motion: To enter Closed Session – pursuant to NMSA 1978 Chapter 10-15-1(H)(2): 47 
discussion of limited personnel matters for the hiring of employees in the Public Works 48 
Department, Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Arzabal, Seconded by Trustee Caro. 49 
 50 
Roll Call Vote: Motion passed (summary: Yes = 3). 51 
Mayor Pro Tem Arzabal   Yes 52 
Trustee Caro   Yes 53 
Trustee Flores   Yes 54 
 55 
Entered Closed Session at 6:03 p.m. 56 
 57 
Motion: To enter Regular Session after limited discussion pursuant to NMSA 1978 Chapter 58 
10-15-1(H)(2) of personnel matters for the hiring of employees in the Public Works 59 
Department – no action taken, Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Arzabal, Seconded by Trustee 60 
Flores.  61 
 62 
Roll Call Vote: Motion passed (summary: Yes = 3). 63 
Mayor Pro Tem Arzabal   Yes 64 
Trustee Caro   Yes 65 
Trustee Flores   Yes 66 
 67 
Entered Regular Session at 6:12 p.m. 68 
 69 

5. PUBLIC INPUT – The public is invited to address the Board for up to 3 minutes.   70 
Ms. Gwendolyn McCann stated she is running for State Representative District 33.  She is a 71 
native of Las Cruces where she and her family attended New Mexico Public Schools. Education 72 
is very important to her.  Teachers are who we are not doing right by in New Mexico and 73 
therefore, we are short changing our students.  We are making teachers responsible for every 74 
aspect of a student’s life.  We have created an evaluation system that is one of the strictest in the 75 
country instead of recruiting, attracting and maintaining good teachers.  It is their passion to get 76 
our kids ready to meet the demands of the world.  We need to see how we allocate and spend 77 
funds and put money back into the classroom because that is where learning is happening.  She 78 
has a Bachelor’s in Government, Master’s in Public Administration and is also an artist.  We are 79 
generating an art environment to help us become an art destination in Southern New Mexico.  80 
Galleries are opening up.  As we work with the Organ Mountain Peak Monument we can create a 81 
way to bring tourism to the area.  She looks forward to working with everyone as their 82 
representative.   83 
 84 
Ms. Mary Martinez-White stated is running for State Representative District 33.  She is a native 85 
of New Mexico, born and raised in Tularosa.  She received her Bachelor’s and MBA from New 86 
Mexico State University.  Her experiences have been in local and state government as well as 87 
judiciary; Court Chief Executive Officer for the Seventh Judicial District a four county 88 
jurisdiction; Chief Financial Officer for the Third Judicial District; state wide Magistrate DWI 89 
Drug Court Coordinator.  Issues dear to her heart are drug courts and trying to find a way to keep 90 
people with mental illness or non-violence offenders out of jail where they are placed with 91 
violent offenders creating more criminals.  She is for treatment and has been working on those 92 
issues since she retired.   There have been some deaths of mentally ill individuals in our 93 
community because they were in crisis.  Money is available and it is cost affective to treat people 94 
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as oppose to jailing them.  This starts with early childhood education while their brains are being 95 
formed.    96 
 97 
Mayor Barraza thanked the speakers for their platform presentations.  98 
 99 

6. *APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA – The Board will be asked to approve by 100 
one motion the following items of recurring or routine business. The Consent 101 
Agenda is marked with an asterisk *: 102 

Motion: To approve consent agenda, Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Arzabal, Seconded by 103 
Trustee Flores. 104 
 105 
Roll Call Vote: Motion passed (summary: Yes = 3). 106 
Mayor Pro Tem Arzabal   Yes 107 
Trustee Caro   Yes 108 
Trustee Flores   Yes 109 
 110 

a. *BOT MINUTES – Regular Meeting of Monday, January 8, 2018.   Approved by 111 
consent agenda 112 

b. *PZHAC Case 060672 w/conditions – 1680 Calle de Alvarez, Suite C1, submitted 113 
by Stefan C. Schafer, a request for a building permit to modify part of a 114 
medical/office building to house a craft distillery at this address. Zoned: General 115 
Commercial (C). (added 1/19/18)   Approved by consent agenda 116 

c. *PZHAC Case 060674 – 1988 Calle del Norte, submitted by Rocky Burke; a request 117 
to for a building permit to renovate a dwelling on the property line at this address. 118 
Zoned: Historical Residential. (HR) (added 1/19/18)   Approved by consent agenda 119 

d. *PZHAC Case 060675 w/conditions – 2337 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by 120 
Gilbert Madrid of Sun Vista Construction, Inc. for Eric Sanchez; a request to for a 121 
building permit to replace six windows on a commercial structure at this address. 122 
Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC). (added 1/19/18)  Approved by consent agenda 123 

e. *PZHAC Case 060653 w/conditions – 2169 Calle de Medanos, submitted by Martin 124 
Serna for Little Fawn Boland, a request for a building permit to construct an addition 125 
to a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR). (added 1/19/18)   126 
Approved by consent agenda 127 

            128 
   **Applicants must show proof they have adhered to conditions prior to coming for permit** 129 
 130 

7. NEW BUSINESS: 131 
a. For Approval: the hiring of a Public Works Foreman, a Groundskeeper/Facilities I 132 

Worker, and a Maintenance/Water Operator I Worker. – Debbie Lujan, Public 133 
Works Director. 134 

Motion: To approve agenda the hiring of a Public Works Foreman, a 135 
Groundskeeper/Facilities I worker and a Maintenance/Water Operator I Worker, Moved 136 
by Mayor Pro Tem Arzabal, Seconded by Trustee Caro. 137 
 138 
Mayor Barraza stated the recommendations are Jack Younker, Public Works Foreman; Lorenzo 139 
Astorga, Groundskeeper/Facilities; Nestor Esparza, Maintenance/Water Operator I Worker. 140 
 141 
Roll Call Vote: Motion passed (summary: Yes = 3). 142 
Mayor Pro Tem Arzabal   Yes 143 
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Trustee Caro   Yes 144 
Trustee Flores   Yes 145 
 146 

 147 
b. For Discussion: going out for a loan for the purchasing of Public Works Vehicles. – 148 

Debbie Lujan, Public Works Director. 149 
Ms. Lujan stated we have spent $31,000 in vehicle repairs the last five years. We have been 150 
looking at purchasing five trucks.  The trucks will be purchased through the Water Fund where 151 
the Asphalt Zipper was purchased and we continue to budget money in.  Also, there is $267,000 152 
budgeted in the Meter Replacement Program that will be completed this year which will be used.  153 
This year we have already spent $5,419.00 in repairs. 154 
 155 
Mayor Barraza asked how old the vehicles are. 156 
 157 
Ms. Lujan responded the oldest is a 1996 and newest one is a 2005.   158 
 159 
Mayor Barraza stated this is not an increase to the budget; it is money that is budgeted for the 160 
Asphalt Zipper and the Meter Replacement Program.  There will be money left from the 161 
grant/loan to cover the remaining replacement cost of the vehicle payments for five years.  162 
Money will also be left in the Meter Replacement Program to replace fire hydrants.   163 
 164 
Ms. Lujan responded hydrants will be replaced or repaired this year.   165 
 166 
Mayor Barraza reiterated we are not asking for a budget increase.   167 
 168 
Trustee Flores asked does this mean fiscal year ending in June or the end of 2018. 169 
 170 
Ms. Lujan responded fiscal year ending June, 2018.   171 
 172 
Mayor Barraza stated this is just the beginning stages and seeing how the board would like to 173 
proceed.   174 
 175 
Trustee Caro asked why you are going through the extra expenses of police lighting.   176 
 177 
Ms. Lujan responded it is not police lighting it is the amber lights for Public Works.   178 
 179 
Trustee Caro stated it seems high for the lights.  As close as we are to elections he would say 180 
wait until June or July.  The list shows the cost of one, two, three, four, five trucks; what is it you 181 
are looking at.   182 
 183 
Ms. Lujan responded she is looking at the five trucks at a yearly payment for five years is 184 
$30,472.00.  It is broken down so the board can see the cost per truck.   185 
 186 
Trustee Caro stated there are so many things that come up; rain, flooding, broken lines.  To go 187 
and make this expense even though you have the money, I say wait until after the election and no 188 
more than two trucks.   189 
 190 
He is not willing to go with it at this time.   191 
 192 
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Mayor Pro Tem Arzabal stated he does not feel the election has anything with buying vehicles.  193 
He asked if we need the five trucks. 194 
 195 
Ms. Lujan responded yes we do.  We will keep the Silverado; the other trucks will be auctioned 196 
off.   197 
 198 
Mayor Pro Tem Arzabal asked if the money from the auction would go back into the Water 199 
Fund.  It does seem five trucks are a lot, we should start with three or four.  He understands the 200 
prices will go up.   201 
 202 
Ms. Lujan responded we will not know what it will be until we apply for the loan.  The cost is 203 
from the state procurement.  The quads were cheaper than a single cab by $8,000.   204 
 205 
Trustee Flores stated she was elected to serve during this time period so if an issue comes up she 206 
is going to deal with it now; the next people that come can make a decision on what they see.    207 
 208 
Mayor Barraza stated we are starting the budget process in February and will need to look at 209 
expenses for the coming year.  We will start our worksessions in March in order to be able to 210 
submit our paperwork to the state in May.  She wonders how those vehicles start in the morning 211 
since they are in such bad shape.  We have spent enough in four years to purchase a vehicle.  212 
Surprisingly it is $8,000 less for a quad than a single cab.     213 
 214 
Trustee Flores asked if the extra fuel cost has been considered since it is a bigger vehicle.   215 
 216 
Ms. Lujan responded she has a budget for fuel.       217 
 218 
Fire Chief Hoban stated Dodge has a big incentive to push the quads making them cheaper.  219 
Regarding fuel these vehicles have smart engines; fuel will improve.  The lighting is call police 220 
lighting because of the connections.  The lighting package includes the amber light bar and 221 
corner lights.  He has been concerned that the trucks are not visible at night; we need to protect 222 
our Public Works employees.   223 
 224 
Mayor Barraza asked that they meet with Ms. Stoehner-Hernandez and Ms. Lujan for further 225 
clarification.  This is something we need; provide tools and equipment for staff to do their jobs.  226 
Safety is our number one concern.  It will be brought back to the board for direction on how to 227 
proceed or for a vote at the next meet. 228 
 229 
Ms. Stoehner-Hernandez stated we received the okay to print for our audit.  There were zero 230 
audit findings.  We are hoping to have our auditor here in February.   231 
 232 
Mayor Barraza stated that was something to very proud of, Ms. Stoehner-Hernandez.   233 
 234 
Fire Chief Hoban stated we contracted to test 171 hydrants and will compile a report which he 235 
will forward to the Board of Trustees.  This was a cooperative venture to support Public Works 236 
in their attempt to improve the infrastructure of the water system.  This was paid through the 237 
Water Fund with permission from the state.  This is in attempt to lower our ISO rating.   238 
 239 

8. BOARD OF TRUSTEE COMMENTS 240 
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Trustee Flores stated she saw Ms. McCann at the Women’s March and felt what she had to say 241 
was important.  Ms. Martinez-White came to her home.  She wished them the best and 242 
appreciates them willing to do the work for the community.  She thanked Fire Chief Hoban for 243 
helping the Public Works Department.   We all need to work together because we do not have 244 
much of a budget.  She appreciates the department heads working together.   245 

246 
Trustee Caro no comments 247 

248 
Mayor Pro Tem Arzabal stated when we gave Public Works a pay raise we made a promise that 249 
we were going to look at all employees in January.  He feels it should be on the next agenda.  We 250 
owe it to the employees to look at the budget to see if we can give them a raise for the remainder 251 
for this fiscal year.  He reiterated that we owe it to the employees.   252 

253 
Mayor Barraza stated next week we will be in Santa Fe attending Municipal Day, February 2nd, 254 
and meeting with our legislators, February 1st.  She has had an opportunity to meet with both 255 
candidates; learned a lot.  Thanked them for their interest in running for District 33 and wished 256 
them luck.  She advocates for the Town of Mesilla to see what they can bring to the town.  For 257 
The Love of Art will be on February 10th.  Ms. Parra is working on getting vendors for the event.  258 
She has seen such an increase of tourism on the plaza.  It brings pride to her in terms of the 259 
community and that people come to our area to see what we have.  We treasurer the things we 260 
have in our community; the cultural events and our plaza.  Ms. Parra has done a great job in 261 
promoting Mesilla.  It is important that we continue to promote that because that is what brings 262 
the people.  Father Christopher has brought change to the church which has brought more people 263 
into our community.  It brings such warmth and pride that we can showcase our community.  264 
The item requested by Mayor Pro Tem Arzabal will be on the agenda for the next meet as well as 265 
the vehicles for Public Works for more direction.  Our next meeting will be February 12th.    266 

267 
9. ADJOURNMENT268 

The Town of Mesilla Trustees unanimously agreed to adjourn the meeting.  (Summary:  269 
Yes-4) 270 

271 
MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:49 P.M. 272 

273 
APPROVED THIS 12th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2018. 274 

275 
276 
277 

_________________________________________ 278 
Nora L. Barraza 279 
Mayor 280 

281 
282 

ATTEST: 283 
284 
285 

___________________________________________ 286 
Cynthia Stoehner-Hernandez 287 
Town Clerk/Treasurer 288 

289 
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PZHAC ACTION FORM 
BUILDING PERMIT 060685 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 2/5/18] 

STAFF ANALYSIS 

(Decision to be based on information presented during the Work Session – Item 2) 

Item: 
Case 060685 – a property just west of 2230 Calle del Sur, submitted by Steven Cadena; a request for a building permit to 
construct a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR).    

Staff Analysis: 
The proposed work was discussed in the PZHAC Work Session held prior to this meeting.  (Please refer to the 
information provided in the write-up for this item in the Work Session.) 

If it is determined that the construction and/or style of the proposed dwelling is architecturally appropriate or acceptable 
for the zoning of the area as proposed, or if an alternate solution is arrived at, then the request can proceed on the 
assumption that all requirements of the Code will be satisfied. The PZHAC should continue on to approve the request 
based on the Findings of Fact stated below. 

If, on the other hand, it is determined that the proposed dwelling would not be architecturally appropriate or acceptable to 
the zoning of the area, and no other solution can be reached, then the PZHAC should either postpone the request further 
until the applicant can return with a proposal that meets the standards set forth by the PZHAC; or the PZHAC should deny 
the request based on the request not meeting any or all of the Findings of Fact as listed.  

Estimated Cost: @ $54,000.00 

Consistency with the Code: 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed structure, when finished, will be consistent with the development of 
land in the HR zoning district.  Additionally, the request appears to meet all other development and application 
requirements of the Code.  

The PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with the all other sections of the 
Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 

Findings of Fact: 
• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request.
• The proposed work consists of constructing a dwelling on the property.
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed dwelling meets all applicable Code requirements.

PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of the building permit to the BOT.
2. Recommend approval of the building to the BOT with conditions.
3. Reject the permit.

PZHAC ACTION: 
Issues brought up during the Work Session included: 

1. The style of the structure, which was determined to be “Northern New Mexico”, with respect to other dwellings
in the development zone. (This is the only dwelling in this part of the HR district with a pitched roof, other than
the apartments to the east and a structure to the south.) The PZHAC determined that since the property
immediately borders the R-1 zone in which there are no architectural standards, and the fact that the dwelling
is going to be built according to one of the five architectural styles defined by the YGUADO Plan (the
“Northern New Mexico” style), the style would be acceptable for the area.

2. The size of the property and the fact that the proposed dwelling was squeezed into the southwestern corner. The
applicant was asked whether he intended to construct other dwellings on the property. He stated that he would

9



like to add other dwellings in the future. He was told that the number of dwellings allowed would be strictly 
limited by the numbers existing in the development zone for the property. (Although the HR zone allows for up 
to one dwelling for every 4000 square feet of property, the adjacent R-1 zone only allows for only one dwelling 
and one casita under 600 square feet in size per property, regardless of property size. Other than the 
apartments to the east, which were built prior to the zoning code, there do not appear to be any properties in 
the area with that have multiple dwellings that were built according to the current zoning code.)  

3. Setbacks. The PZHAC recommended that the proposed dwelling be setback seven feet from the west property
line, not six feet as shown on the plans. Since the code allows a three foot setback, this was just a
recommendation.

4. Ownership of the property. According to the applicant, he is in the process of purchasing the property from his
parents and will provide paperwork showing ownership of the property.

Based on the above considerations, the PZHAC determined that the proposed dwelling is allowable, and voted 3-0 to 
recommend APPROVAL of the application to the BOT with the following CONDITION: 

• The applicant construct the dwelling according to the design standards set forth in the Yguado Plan for
structures built in the Northern New Mexico style.

BOT OPTIONS: 
1. Approve the application as approved by the PZHAC.
2. Approve the application with further, or different conditions.
3. Reject the application.

BOT ACTION: 

10
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PZHAC WORK SESSION 
FEBRUARY 5, 2018 

ITEM 2 
 

Submitted by Stephan Cadena, a request to discuss plans to construct a dwelling on a property just west of a 
property at 2230 Calle del Sur. (Case 060685)  Zoned: Historical Residential (HR). 
 
The subject property is on the south side of Calle del Sur, and is accessed directly from Calle del Sur. The 
property is immediately adjacent to and west of the applicant’s dwelling. The property is currently vacant.  
 
The dwelling will be square (32 feet on a side and will contain about 1024 square feet of heated/cooled area. 
The dwelling will be single story and contain two bedroom and two bathrooms. There will be no garage or 
carport. The dwelling will have a pitched roof covered with gray corrugated metal. The maximum height of the 
structure will be under 30 feet. This will be under the maximum height in the HR zone..  
 
The dwelling will be set in the southwest corner of a rectangular lot. The applicant has been informed that the 
minimum setbacks in the HR district are three feet, but that any structure under seven feet from the property 
line will have to meet higher construction standards for fire resistance. (The attached site plan for the structure  
appears to show the proposed side setback as about six feet.) Also attached with the site plan of the property is 
a floor plan of the dwelling, as well as a set of elevations for the dwelling. There is adequate room on the 
property for required parking. 
 
The applicant will be present at the work session to provide further details about the proposed construction, 
and will be available to answer any questions that may arise. 
 

VIEW OF SUBJECT PROPERTY FROM CALLE DEL SUR 

 
13



PHOTOS OF THE OTHER DWELLINGS IN THE AREA TO THE WEST 
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PHOTOS OF THE OTHER DWELLINGS IN THE AREA TO THE WEST  

 
 

 
 

15



PHOTOS OF THE APPLICANT’S DWELLING TO THE EAST  

  
 

PHOTO OF THE APARTMENTS TO THE EAST SHOWING THE PITCHED ROOF 
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BOT ACTION FORM 
BUILDING PERMIT 060686 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 2/5/18] 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
 

(PZHAC decision was based on information presented during the Work Session – Item 3) 
 
Item: 
Case 060686 – 2615 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by Ouida Touchon; a request to for a building permit to construct an 
adobe wall on the property line at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential.  
  
Staff Analysis: 
The proposed work was discussed in the PZHAC Work Session held prior to this meeting.  (Please refer to the 
information provided in the write-up for this item in the Work Session.) 
 
If it is determined that the proposed wall is architecturally appropriate or acceptable for the zoning of the area as 
proposed, or if an alternate solution is arrived at, then the request can proceed on the assumption that all requirements of 
the Code will be satisfied. The PZHAC should continue on to approve the request based on the Findings of Fact stated 
below. 
 
If, on the other hand, it is determined that the proposed wall would not be architecturally appropriate or acceptable to the 
zoning of the area, and no other solution can be reached, then the PZHAC should either postpone the request further until 
the applicant can return with a proposal that meets the standards set forth by the PZHAC; or the PZHAC should deny the 
request based on the request not meeting any or all of the Findings of Fact as listed.  
 
Estimated Cost: @ $4,000.00 
   
Consistency with the Code:  
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed wall, when installed, will be consistent with the development of 
land in the surrounding HR district.  Additionally, the request appears to meet all other development and application 
requirements of the Code.  
  
The PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with the all other sections of the 
Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
Findings of Fact: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and recommend approval of this request to the BOT. 
• The proposed work installing an adobe wall on a property line.. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed dwelling meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC ACTION: 
Issues brought up during the Work Session included: 

1. The fact that the applicant had applied for a permit to construct a wall on the property in 2004 and was turned 
down by the PZHAC (Case 2004-116).  According to the 2004 case file, the proposal was turned down mainly 
because the new wall would be different than what had been on the property, and that a wall as proposed 
would be out of character with the development zone and the area. The records of the case also referenced that 
metal fencing, including chain link, could be allowed if it was used in the past on the property. However, the 
PZHAC determined that the proposed wall, which will be built to match the dwelling and will consist of 
uncoated adobe, would be more historically correct with what would have been constructed on the property 
than a metal fence, since adobe was more readily available at the time the dwelling was constructed (1880’s) 
than wire or chain link. (The PZHAC determined that the existing fencing is not a historically accurate 
reflection of the fencing material that was available at the time the structure was constructed.) The PZHAC 
also referenced the fact that the Code, as it is currently written, does not allow wire metal or chain link fences 
along yards facing a street. (Section 18.60.340(E) Wall, fence or hedge states “Walls or fences constructed 
within the front yard setback area facing a street within the H-R, H-C, R-1 zones must be built with the 
following materials only: stucco, brick, stone, wood, adobe and wrought iron”.)    
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2. Clear-sight-triangle requirements. The PZHAC determined that the design of the wall does take into account 
the requirements of Section 18.60.340(G)  of the code with respect to driveways and street corners.  
 

Based on the above considerations, the PZHAC determined that the proposed wall meets the requirements of the Code 
and  is allowable, and voted 3-0 to recommend APPROVAL of the application to the BOT as submitted to the PZHAC.  
 
BOT OPTIONS: 

1. Approve the application as approved by the PZHAC.     
2. Approve the application with conditions.  
3. Reject the application.  

  
BOT ACTION: 
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PZHAC WORK SESSION 
NOVEMBER 20, 2017 

ITEM 4 

Submitted by Ouida Touchon, a request to discuss plans to construct an adobe wall at 2615 Calle de Guadalupe. (Case 
060686)  Zoned: Historical Residential (HR)    

The applicant would like to construct an adobe wall along the north and east property lines of her property. (The dwelling 
is on the west end of the property.)  The wall will be built along the property line and will vary in height from three to six 
feet. (There will be a wooden gate in the north side of the wall that will be flanked by two portions of the wall that rise to 
eight feet to accommodate the gate.)  The wall will be six feet high at the dwelling, and will drop to three feet in height at 
the corner of Calle de Guadalupe and Calle de Colon in order to accommodate the clear-sight-triangle for the corner and 
the driveway to the property (see attached diagram). The wall will be painted to match the dwelling.   

The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed wall will be compatible with the surrounding properties, and that 
the proposed wall will be consistent with the following section of the Code: 

Chapter 18.35 HR – Historical Residential Zone 
The wall could be compatible with the HR zoning of the property if it is painted to match or coordinate with the 
dwelling it is attached to. 

The PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with the all other sections of the 
Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 

The applicant will be present at the work session to provide further details about the proposed shed, and will be available 
to answer any questions that may arise. 

VIEW OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY FROM CALLE DE COLON 
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VIEW OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY FROM THE CORNER OF CALLE DE COLON AND CALLE DE 
GUADALUPE  
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BOT ACTION FORM 
BUILDING PERMIT REQUEST CASE 060683 

 [PZHAC REVIEW – 2/5/18] 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
Item: 
Case 060683 – 2750 Boldt Street, submitted by Solar Smart Living for Jerome Walker, a request for a 
building permit to allow the installation of solar photo-voltaic panels on the roof of a dwelling at this 
address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR). 

Description: 
The applicant intends to install photovoltaic solar panels on the dwelling, which is currently under 
construction. The panels will be installed at the rear of the structure on a flat roof surrounded by parapet 
walls. There will be two panels that will not be visible from the street (see attached overhead plan.) 
According to the applicant, there will be no changes to the exterior of the structure, and the style and use 
of the dwelling will not be changed. There will be no visible impacts to the surrounding properties. There 
are several other dwellings in the Mesilla Farms subdivision that have solar panels on the roof.   

Consistency with the Code: 
The PZHAC will need to determine that this request is consistent with all applicable sections of the MTC, 
provided that the PZHAC has interpreted that the proposed use is an allowed use on the property. 

The subject property is in the Historic Residential (HR) zoning district, therefore the architectural 
standards required by Section 18.33.090 (Design components or development criteria and compliance 
checklists) of the Code apply to this dwelling or project if the panels can be seen from the ground, or if it 
is determined by the PZHAC that the use will have a detrimental effect on the Historic District.  

The PZHAC will need to determine that the project, as proposed, now meets the following Findings. 

Findings: 
• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request.
• The proposed project is regulated by Chapter 18.33 of the Code.
• This PZHSC has determined that the proposed use meets the Code and is allowed this zoning

district as requested.
• The proposed use will not create any negative impacts to the area.

PZHAC ACTION: 

PHOTO OF DWELLING FROM TERESITA STREET 
The PZHAC voted 3-0 for approval of this case.
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
Wayne Johnson 
New Mexico State Auditor 
Mayor and Board of Trustees 
Town of Mesilla 
Mesilla, New Mexico 
 
To the Mayor and Board of Trustees 
 
Report of the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, and the budgetary comparisons for 
the general fund and major special revenue funds of the Town of Mesilla, New Mexico (Town), as of and for 
the year-ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements which collectively comprise 
the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town, as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in 
financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons for 
the general fund and major special revenue funds for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.   
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Schedule of 
proportionate share of the net pension liability and the schedule of contributions and notes to the Required 
Supplementary Information on pages 45-51 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit 
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with evidence sufficient to express an opinion or provide 
any assurance. 
 
Management has omitted the Management Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our 
opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the Town’s financial statements, and the 
combining and individual fund financial statements, and the budgetary comparisons. The schedules required 
by 2.2.2 NMAC are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. 
 
The schedules required by 2.2.2 NMAC are the responsibility of management and were derived from and 
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 

46



financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedules required by 2.2.2 NMAC are 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 13, 
2017, on our consideration of the Town’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering Town’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 
 
 
 
Integrity Accounting & Consulting, LLC 
Albuquerque, NM 
 
December 13, 2017 
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Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Totals

Assets and deferred inflows of resources:
Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 887,652             618,677             1,506,329          
Investments 244,625             45,716               290,341             
Receivables

Accounts receivable -                          58,006               58,006               
Taxes receivable 184,017             3,902                 187,919             
Other receivables 532                     -                          532                     
Due from other governments 7,172                 -                          7,172                 

Total current assets 1,323,998          726,301             2,050,299          

Non-current assets:
Capital assets 11,808,359       3,503,606         15,311,965       
Less: Accumulated depreciation (3,668,441)        (2,454,591)        (6,123,032)        

Total non-current assets 8,139,918          1,049,015         9,188,933          
Total assets 9,463,916          1,775,316         11,239,232       

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 100,150             -                          100,150             
Actuarial experience 120,841             -                          120,841             
Investment experience 311,714             -                          311,714             
Change of assumptions 122,864             -                          122,864             
Change of proportion 90,506               -                          90,506               

Total deferred outflows of resources 746,075             -                          746,075             

Total assests and
deferred outflows of resources $ 10,209,991       1,775,316         11,985,307       

Liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and net position:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 33,820            28,145           61,965            
Accrued payroll liabilities 32,046            8,972              41,018            
Other accrued liabilities 21,359            -                      21,359            
Customer deposits -                      28,941           28,941            
Current portion of compensated absences 38,798            3,052              41,850            
Current portion of long-term debt 82,762            3,288              86,050            

Total current liabilities 208,785         72,398           281,183         

Non-current liabilities
Compensated absences 9,699              763                 10,462            
Notes payable 747,663         18,999           766,662         
Net pension liability 2,004,246      -                      2,004,246      

Total non-current liabilities 2,761,608      19,762           2,781,370      
Total liabilities 2,970,393      92,160           3,062,553      

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Actuarial experience 7,157              -                      7,157              
Change of assumptions 17,208            -                      17,208            
Change of proportion 450,207         -                      450,207         

Total deferred inflows of resources 474,572             -                          474,572             

Net position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 6,052,910      1,045,727      7,098,637      
Unrestricted Net Position 712,116         637,429         1,349,545      

Total net position 6,765,026      1,683,156      8,448,182      

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and net position: $ 10,209,991       1,775,316         11,985,307       

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
As of June 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Functions/programs

Expenses

Charges 
for 

Services

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions

Capital Grants 
and 

Contributions
Government
al Activities

Business-
Type 

Activities Total
Primary government:

Governmental activities
General government $ 1,048,140    4,416 80,542 -                          (963,182)       -                    (963,182)       
Public safety 936,341        -                 376,549             -                          (559,792)       -                    (559,792)       
Public works 388,237        -                 -                          98,576               (289,661)       -                    (289,661)       
Culture and recreation 153,944        41,146 -                          -                          (112,798)       -                    (112,798)       
Interest expense 29,569 -                 -                          -                          (29,569)         -                    (29,569)         

Total governmental activities 2,556,231    45,562      457,091             98,576               (1,955,002)    -                    (1,955,002)    

Business-type activities:
Utilities

Water 310,851        301,999   -                          -                          -                      (8,852)          (8,852)            
Solid Waste 241,677        212,981   -                          -                          -                      (28,696)        (28,696)         
Wastewater 150,551        176,339   -                          -                          -                      25,788         25,788           
Water rights activities -                     31,892      -                          -                          -                      31,892         31,892           

Total business-type activities $ 703,079        723,211   -                          -                          -                      20,132         20,132           
Total primary government (1,955,002)    20,132         (1,934,870)    

General revenues:
Taxes

Property taxes levied for general purposes $ 80,618           -                    80,618           
Gross receipts taxes 1,063,307     22,851         1,086,158     
Other taxes and fees 140,858        -                    140,858        

Licenses and permits 31,295           -                    31,295           
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties 94,208           -                    94,208           
Interest income 2,986             503               3,489             
Miscellaneous income 156,719        10,004         166,723        

Total general revenue and transfers 1,569,991     33,358         1,603,349     

Changes in net assets (385,011)       53,490         (331,521)       

Beginning net position 7,150,037     1,629,666   8,779,703     
Net position, end of year $ 6,765,026     1,683,156   8,448,182     

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes In Net 
Program Revenues Primary Government

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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 General 
Fund 

 Fire 
Protection 

Fund 
 Town Hall 

Fund 

 Public 
Safety 

Building 
 Total Non-

Major Funds  Total Funds 
Assets and deferred inflows of resources:

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 39,202       13,415       685,178    -                  149,858       887,653       
Investments 101,991     -                  90,122      -                  52,512          244,625       
Receivables

Taxes receivable 167,518     -                  15,663      -                  835               184,016       
Other receivables -                  532             -                 -                  -                     532               
Due from other funds 453            -                  -                 -                  -                     453               
Due from other governments 2,500         -                  -                 -                  4,672            7,172           

Total assets 311,664     13,947       790,963    -                  207,877       1,324,451   

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Total deferred outflows of resources -                  -                  -                 -                  -                     -                    

Total assests and
deferred outflows of resources $ 311,664     13,947       790,963    -                  207,877       1,324,451   

Liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 28,432       1,316         -                 -                  4,072            33,820         
Accrued payroll liabilities 30,490       -                  -                 -                  1,556            32,046         
Other accrued liabilities 21,359       -                  -                 -                  -                     21,359         
Due to other fund -                  -                  -                 -                  453               453               
Total liabilities 80,281       1,316         -                 -                  6,081            87,678         

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
"Unavailable" revenues 2,652         -                  -                 -                  -                     2,652           
Total deferred inflows of resources 2,652         -                  -                 -                  -                     2,652           

Fund balances:
Nonspendable -                  -                  -                 -                  -                     -                    

   Restricted -                  12,631       790,963    -                  64,861          868,455       
   Committed 121,038     -                  -                 -                  140,225       261,263       
   Assigned -                  -                  -                 -                  -                     -                    
   Unassigned 107,693     -                  -                 -                  (3,290)           104,403       
      Total fund balances 228,731     12,631       790,963    -                  201,796       1,234,121   

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances: $ 311,664     13,947       790,963    -                  207,877       1,324,451   

Cap Projects
Major Funds

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

BALANCE SHEET

As of June 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
   are different because:

Total fund balance - Governmental funds $ 1,234,121     

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.  8,139,918     

Delinquent property tax not collected within sixty days after year end are not 
considered "available" revenues and are considered to be deferred inflows of 
resources in the fund financial statements, but are considered revenue in the 
statement of activities. 2,652             

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions are applicable to 
future periods and therefore, are not reported in the funds:

Deferred outflows of resources related to: 
Employer contribution subsequent to the measurement date 100,150        
Actuarial experience 120,841        
Investment experience 311,714        
Change of assumptions 122,864        
Change of proportion 90,506          

Deferred inflows of resources related to:
Actuarial experience (7,157)           
Change of assumptions (17,208)         
Change of proportion (450,207)       

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the 
current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.  Long-term liabilities at 
year-end consist of:

Current compensated absences $ (38,798)         
Noncurrent compensated absences (9,699)           
Current notes payable (82,762)         
Noncurrent notes payable (747,663)       
Net pension liability $ (2,004,246)    

(2,883,168)    

Net position for governmental activities $ 6,765,026     

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE

As of June 30, 2017
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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 General 
Fund 

 Fire 
Protection 

Fund 
 Town Hall 

Fund 

 Public 
Safety 

Building 
 Total Non-

Major Funds  Total Funds 
Revenues:

Taxes
Property $ 81,842         -                  -                 -                  -                      81,842         
Gross receipts 934,836       -                  137,145    -                  37,040           1,109,021   
Other 80,709         -                  -                 -                  14,434           95,143         

Licenses and permits 31,295         -                  -                 -                  -                      31,295         
Charges for services 37,112         -                  -                 -                  10,610           47,722         
Fines and forfeitures 63,705         -                  -                 -                  30,503           94,208         
Intergovernmental revenue

Federal grants -                    -                  -                 -                  27,801           27,801         
State grants 90,000         188,506     -                 19,258       240,398         538,162       
Other grants 9,800           -                  -                 -                  -                      9,800           

Interest income 974               43               -                 -                  782                 1,799           
Miscellaneous income 109,684       20               1,187         -                  24,701           135,592       

Total revenues 1,439,957   188,569     138,332    19,258       386,269         2,172,385   

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 627,849       -                  -                 -                  -                      627,849       
Public safety 601,507 -                  -                 -                  233,679         835,186       
Public works 144,946 126,319     -                 -                  -                      271,265       
Culture and recreation 144,104 -                  -                 -                  9,840              153,944       

Capital outlay 14,180         107,224     -                 -                  275,884         397,288       
Debt service

Principal -                    -                  21,441       -                  48,960           70,401         
Interest -                    -                  24,996       -                  4,573              29,569         

Total expenditures 1,532,586   233,543     46,437       -                  572,936         2,385,502   

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures (92,629)        (44,974)      91,895       19,258       (186,667)        (213,117)     

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from debt issuance -                    79,842       -                 -                  -                      79,842         
Transfers in 29,818         -                  -                 -                  130,054         159,872       
Transfers out (41,231)        (17,669)      -                 (83,662)      (17,310)          (159,872)     

Total other financing sources (uses): (11,413)        62,173       -                 (83,662)      112,744         79,842         

Net change in fund balances (104,042)     17,199       91,895       (64,404)      (73,923)          (133,275)     

Beginning fund balance 332,773       (4,568)        699,068    64,404       275,719         1,367,396   

Ending fund balance $ 228,731       12,631       790,963    -                  201,796         1,234,121   

Cap Projects
Major Funds

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Total net change in fund balances-governmental funds $ (133,275)          

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimates
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital expenditures recorded as capital outlay or other expenses 148,611            

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the government-wide
statement of activities and changes in net position, but they do not require the use of
current financial resources. Therefore depreciation expense is not reported as an
expenditure in the governmental funds. (360,172)          

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial 
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Change in deferred inflows of resources related to property taxes receivable (1,224)               

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, notes, capital leases) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of
long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction, however has any effect on net position. Also, governmental
funds report the effect of premiums and similar items when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.

(Increase)/decrease in compensated absences (15,263)             
Issuance of long-term debt (79,842)             
Principal payments on long-term debt 70,401              

Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of pension benefits earned net of employee
contributions is reported as pension expense:

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 100,150            
Pension expense (114,397)          

Change in net position of governmental activities $ (385,011)          

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different
because:

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

As of June 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Original Final Actual
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 
Revenues:

Taxes
Property $ 75,000             95,589             95,589             -                             
Gross receipts 871,275           929,955           929,955           -                             
Other 98,700             80,482             80,482             -                             

Licenses and permits 45,850             31,295             31,295             -                             
Charges for services 105,650           87,811             37,112             (50,699)                 
Fines and forfeitures 105,000           105,000           63,705             (41,295)                 
Intergovernmental revenue

State grants 185,154           95,913             90,000             (5,913)                   
Other grants 15,400             11,400             9,800               (1,600)                   

Interest income 900                   875                   974                   99                          
Miscellaneous income 12,350             101,010           86,135             (14,875)                 

Total revenues 1,515,279        1,539,330        1,425,047        (114,283)              

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 653,597           647,139           611,985           35,154                  
Public safety 573,324 571,974 571,974 -                             
Public works 167,236 158,832 148,993 9,839                    
Culture and recreation 125,868 143,321 143,321 -                             
Capital outlay 12,000             14,180             14,180             -                             

Total expenditures 1,532,025        1,535,446        1,490,453        44,993                  

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 
expenditures (16,746)            3,884               (65,406)            (159,276)              

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in -                        450                   29,818             29,368                  
Transfers out -                        (9,561)              (35,795)            (26,234)                 

Total other financing sources (uses): -                        (9,111)              (5,977)              3,134                    

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and 
other financing sources (uses) (16,746)            (5,227)              (71,383)            (156,142)              

Budgeted cash carryover 16,746             5,227               

Net change in fund balance $ -                        -                        

Reconciliation From Budget/Actual to GAAP

Net change in fund balance (Non-GAAP budgetary basis) $ (71,383)            

Adjustments to revenue for tax accruals and other miscellaneous revenue accruals 14,913             

Adjustments to expenditures for accrued wages and expenditures (47,573)            

Net change in fund balance (GAAP) $ (104,043)          

Budgeted Amounts

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

GENERAL FUND

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Original Final Actual
Favorable 

(Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental revenue
State grants $ 188,506         188,506         188,506         -                             

Miscellaneous income -                      20                   20                   -                             
Total revenues 188,506         188,526         188,526         -                             

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safety 191,871         152,407         124,404         28,003                   
Capital outlay -                      39,464           28,469           10,995                   

Total expenditures 191,871         191,871         152,873         38,998                   

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 
expenditures (3,365)            (3,345)            35,653           38,998                   

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in -                      -                      -                      -                             
Transfers out -                      (35,338)         (17,669)         17,669                   

Total other financing sources (uses): -                      (35,338)         (17,669)         17,669                   

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and 
other financing sources (uses) (3,365)            (38,683)         17,984           56,667                   

Budgeted cash carryover 3,365             38,683           

Net change in fund balance $ -                      -                      

Net change in fund balance (Non-GAAP budgetary basis) $ 17,984           

Adjustments to revenue not necessary 79,885           

Adjustments to expenditures not necessary (80,670)         

Net change in fund balance (GAAP) $ 17,199           

Budgeted Amounts

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

FIRE PROTECTION FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2017
Assets and deferred inflows of resources:

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 618,677                
Investments 45,716                  
Receivables

Accounts receivable 58,006
Taxes receivable 3,902                    

Total current assets 726,301                

Non-current assets:
Capital assets 3,503,606            
Less: Accumulated depreciation (2,454,591)           

Total non-current assets 1,049,015            
Total assets 1,775,316            

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Total deferred outflows of resources -                             

Total assests and
deferred outflows of resources $ 1,775,316            

Liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and net position:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 28,145                  
Accrued payroll liabilities 8,972                    
Customer deposits 28,941                  
Current portion of compensated absences 3,052                    
Current portion of long-term debt 3,288                    

Total current liabilities 72,398                  

Non-current liabilities
Compensated absences 763                       
Notes payable 18,999                  

Total non-current liabilities 19,762                  
Total liabilities 92,160                  

Deferred inflows of resources:
Total deferred inflows of resources -                             

Net position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,026,728            
Unrestricted Net Position 656,428                

Total net position 1,683,156            

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and net position: $ 1,775,316            

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

As of June 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2017
Operating revenues:

Charges for services 
Water $ 301,999
Solid Waste 212,981               
Wastewater 176,339               
Water rights activities 31,892                 

Total operating revenues 723,211               

Operating expenses:
Personnel services 165,871               
Operating expenses 445,979
Depreciation and amortization 91,229                 

Total operating expenses 703,079               

Operating income (loss) 20,132                 

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Gross receipts and other taxes 22,851                 
Miscellaneous 10,004                 
Interest income 503                      
Interest expense -                            

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 33,358                 

Income (loss) before transfers 53,490                 

Transfers in (out) -                            

Change in net position 53,490                 

Net position, beginning of year 1,629,666           

Net position, end of year $ 1,683,156           

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2017
Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from customers and users $ 709,449         
Receipts from interfund services provided
Payments to suppliers and employees (440,988)       
Payments to employees (162,336)       

Net cash provided (used) for operating activities 106,125         

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Tax receipts 22,851           
Miscellaneous income 10,003           

Net cash provided (used) for noncapital financing activities 32,854           

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (11,673)         

Net cash provided (used) for capital and related financing activities (11,673)         

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments (222)               
Interest and dividends 503                

Net cash provided (used) for investing activities. 281                

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 127,587         

Cash and cash equivalents – beginning of year 491,090         

Cash and cash equivalents – end of year $ 618,677         

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities

Operating income (loss) $ 20,132           

Adjustments
Depreciation and amortization 91,229           

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables (13,762)         
Accounts payable 4,023             
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,061             
Deposits 968                
Compensated absences 1,474             

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 106,125         

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2017
Assets:

Cash $ 15,653                 

Total assets $ 15,653                 

Liabilities:
Refunds payable $ 8,557                   
Held for others 7,096                   

Total liabilities $ 15,653                 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS

As of June 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The Town was incorporated in 1959.  The Town is a political subdivision of the State of New Mexico, 
operates under the Trustee-Clerk form of government.  The Town provides the following authorized 
services; public safety, police and fire, highways and streets, water, sanitation, health and welfare, social 
services, culture and recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning and general administrative 
services. 
 
The financial statements of the Town have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and 
financial reporting principles. The Town's most significant accounting policies are described below. 
 
A.  Reporting Entity 

The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government, (b) organizations for which the 
primary government is accountable and (c) other organizations for which the nature and significance 
of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting 
entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 
 
The definition of the reporting entity is based primarily on the notion of financial accountability.  A 
primary government is financially accountable for the organizations that make up its legal entity.  It 
is also financially accountable for legally separate organizations if its officials appoint a voting 
majority of an organization’s governing body, and either it is able to impose its will on that 
organization, or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or 
impose specific financial burdens, or the primary government.  A primary government may also be 
financially accountable for governmental organizations that are fiscally dependent on it. 
 
In evaluating how to define the Town, for financial reporting purposes, management has considered 
all potential component units.  The decision to include any potential component units in the 
financial reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GASB-14.  The first criterion 
for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is the governing body’s ability to 
exercise oversight responsibility.  The most significant manifestation of this ability is financial 
interdependency.  Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility include, 
but are not limited to, the selection of governing authority, the designation of management, the 
ability to significantly influence operations, and accountability for fiscal matters. 
 
A second criterion used in evaluating potential component units is the scope of public service.  
Application of this criterion involves considering whether the activity benefits the government 
and/or its citizens.  A third criterion used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or 
exclusion from the reporting entity is the existence of special financing relationships, regardless of 
whether the government is able to exercise oversight responsibilities.  Based upon the application of 
these criteria, the Town has no component units and is not a component unit of another 
governmental agency. 
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B.  Basis of Accounting/Measurement Focus 
 
The accounts of the Town are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a 
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of 
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred 
inflows of resources, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. 
Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the 
purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
The Town’s Government-Wide Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Position and a 
Statement of Activities. These statements present summaries of Governmental and Business-Type 
Activities for the Town accompanied by a total column. Fiduciary activities of the Town are not 
included in these statements. 
 
These statements are presented on an “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the Town’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, 
and deferred inflows of resources, including capital assets and long-term liabilities, are included in 
the accompanying Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Activities presents changes in net 
position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they 
are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred, regardless 
of the timing of related cash flows. The types of transactions reported as program revenues for the 
Town include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from 
goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 
function or segment.  Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are 
reported instead as general revenues 
 
Certain eliminations have been made to interfund activities, payables, and receivables. All internal 
balances in the Statement of Net Position have been eliminated except those representing balances 
between the governmental activities and the business-type activities, which are presented as 
internal balances and eliminated in the total primary government column. In the Statement of 
Activities, those transactions between governmental and business-type activities have not been 
eliminated. 
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements 
 
Governmental fund financial statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and non-major funds 
aggregated. An accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in fund 
balances and changes in fund balances as presented in these statements to the net position and 
changes in net position presented in the Government-Wide financial statements.  
 
The Town reports the general fund as a major governmental fund. It accounts for all financial 
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.  
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Revenues are provided through property and other taxes, federal sources, state sources, charges for 
services, licenses and fees, and other miscellaneous recoveries and revenue.  Expenditures include 
all costs associated with the daily operation of the Town except for items included in other funds. 
 
In addition, the Town reports the following other major funds: 
 
Special Revenue Fund – The Fire Protection fund is used to account for the operation and acquisition 
of assets for the Fire Department.  This fund is financed through state grants (NMSA 59A-53-1). 
 
Capital Project Fund – The Town Hall Capital Project Fund accounts for the construction of a new 
municipal complex.  Authority for the creation of this fund is by Town resolution.   
 
Capital Project Fund – The Public Safety Building Remodel fund is used to account for the 
reconstruction and remodel of the Town’s Public Safety building.  Authority for the creation of this 
fund is by Town resolution. 
 
All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or “current financial resources” 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets, 
deferred outflows of resources, current liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources are included on 
the Balance Sheets. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other 
financing uses) in net current assets. 
 
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in 
which they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period. 
Accordingly, revenues are recorded when received in cash, except that revenues subject to accrual 
(generally 60 days after year-end) are recognized when due. The primary revenue sources, which 
have been treated as susceptible to accrual by the Town, are property tax, sales tax, 
intergovernmental revenues and other taxes. Expenditures are recorded in the accounting period in 
which the related fund liability is incurred. 
 
Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been 
incurred and all other grant requirements have been met and the susceptible to accrual criteria have 
been met. 
 
Under the terms of grant agreements, the Town funds certain programs by a combination of specific 
cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, when program 
expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to finance the 
program. It is the Town's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, 
followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues. 
 
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements 
 
Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows for each major 
proprietary fund and for the non-major funds aggregated.  The Town’s lone proprietary fund is the 
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Joint Utility Fund. 
 
Proprietary funds are accounted for using the “economic resources” measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities 
(whether current or noncurrent), and deferred inflows of resources are included on the Statement 
of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position presents 
increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are 
recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows. 
 
Operating revenues, such as charges for services, in the proprietary funds are those revenues that 
are generated from the primary operations of the fund. All other revenues, such as subsidies/grants 
and investment earnings, are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those 
expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as 
non-operating expenses. 
 
Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements 
 
Fiduciary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Position. The Town’s fiduciary funds 
are Agency Funds, which are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve 
measurement of results of operations. The Agency funds are accounted for on a spending or 
“economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting as are the proprietary 
funds explained above.  The Town’s sole Agency Fund is the Municipal Court Bond Fund used to 
account for bonds posted for court appearances. 

 
C.  Assets, Liabilities and Equity 

 
Cash Equivalents 
 
The Town’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and 
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.  
The Town pools idle cash from all funds for the purpose of increasing income through investment 
activities. A "Pooled Cash" concept is used in maintaining the cash and investment accounts in the 
accounting records. Under this method, all cash is pooled for investment purposes and each fund 
has equity in the pooled amount. All amounts included in pooled cash and investments are 
considered to be cash equivalents for the purposes of the statement of cash flows, except for 
certificates of deposit or other investments that have original maturities of more than 90 days. 
 
Investments 
 
The Town's investments are regulated by state law as well as by guidelines and rules promulgated 
by the State Investment Council and the State Treasurer. All investments are generally highly liquid 
in nature and are integrated with cash on the financial statements with appropriate disclosure. 
Investments are stated at fair value, which is determined using selected bases. Certificates of 
deposit are reported at carrying amount, which reasonably estimates fair value. Investments in a 
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U.S. Treasury Fund and repurchase agreements are valued at the last reported sales price at current 
exchange rates. Additional cash, investment information, and fair values are presented in Notes 3 
and 4. 
 
The Town also participates in the State Treasurer Local Government Investment Pool. State law and 
regulations regulate this pool. Investment in the pool is reported at carrying amount, which 
reasonably estimates fair value. 
 
Receivables and Payables 
 
Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e. the 
current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e. the non-current portion 
of interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and 
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal 
balances.” In governmental fund financial statements, advances between funds are offset by an 
amount reported as nonspendable fund balance to indicate that they are not available for 
appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources. 
 
All receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. Trade accounts receivable 
in excess of 90 days comprise the trade accounts receivable allowance for uncollectible accounts. 
 
Receivables from and payables to external parties are reported separately and are not offset in the 
proprietary fund financial statements and business-type activities of the government-wide financial 
statements, unless a right of offset exists. 
 
Property taxes attach as an unsubordinated enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of the 
assessment year. Current year taxes are levied within five days of the rate setting order received 
from New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration (7-38-32 thru 7-38-36). Tax bills are 
mailed by November 1, unless the Doña Ana County Assessor obtains a formal extension of time 
from the New Mexico Property Tax Division. Taxpayers have the option to pay in two equal 
installments due by the close of business November 10th and April 10th.  Penalty and interest will be 
accrued after the delinquency due dates of December 10th and May 10th.  In the event of a formal 
extension, the respective dates are correspondingly extended. 
 
Inventories and Prepaid Items 
 
Inventories in governmental funds consist of expendable supplies held for consumption, and are 
valued at cost using a first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Expendable supplies are accounted for using 
the consumption method. Proprietary fund inventories are recorded at the lower of cost or market 
on a first-in, first-out basis, and consist of operating supplies held for use in operations and are 
recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.  The Town current does not 
hold any items in inventory. 
 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded 
as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
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Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, 
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type 
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the 
government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life 
in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if 
purchased or constructed. Pursuant to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, the historical 
cost of infrastructure assets, (retroactive to 1979) are included as part of the governmental capital 
assets reported in the government wide statements. Information technology equipment including 
software is being capitalized and included in machinery and equipment in accordance with NMAC 
2.20.1.9 C (5). Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of 
donation. Capital assets that have been disposed of are recorded as deletions on the government-
wide financial statements.  Accumulated depreciation is adjusted for all deletions. 
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets lives are not capitalized. 
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. 
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is 
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. The total interest expense 
capitalized by the Town during the current fiscal year was $0. No interest was included as part of the 
cost of capital assets under construction. 
 
Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government are depreciated using the straight-line 
method over the following estimated useful lives: 
 

Asset Type Years
Land Perpetuity
Construction in progress Perpetuity
Buildings 30 - 40
Other improvements 40
Util ity system 25
Machinery and equipment 5 - 10

 
Analysis of Impairment 
 
Management reviews long‐lived assets and intangible assets for impairment whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. In 
management's opinion, there is no impairment of such Town assets at June 30, 2017. 
 
Deferred Outflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the balance sheet reports a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a 
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use of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of 
resources (expenditure) until that time. The Town has five types of items that qualify for reporting in 
this category. Accordingly, the items, employer contributions subsequent to measurement date, net 
difference between expected and actual earnings on pension plan investments, net difference 
between expected and actual experience, change in assumptions and change in proportion, are 
reported on the Statement of Net Position. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an 
outflow of resources in the period the amounts become available. The Town has recorded $100,150 
related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date, $311,714 related to the net 
difference between expected and actual earnings on pension plan investments, $120,841 related to 
the net difference between expected and actual experience, $122,864 related to changes in 
assumptions and $90,506 related to changes in proportion. 
 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to liabilities, the balance sheet reports a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an 
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an 
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. Revenue must be susceptible to accrual (measurable 
and available to finance expenditures of the current fiscal period) to be recognized. 
 
If assets are recognized in connection with a transaction, but those assets are not yet available to 
finance expenditures of the current fiscal period, then the assets must be offset by a corresponding 
liability for deferred inflows of resources. 
 
The Town has six types of items which qualify for reporting in this category. The items, unavailable 
revenue – property taxes and unavailable revenue ‐ grants, are reported only in the governmental 
funds balance sheet. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the 
period that the amounts become available. The Town has recorded $2,652 related to property taxes 
and $-0- related to grants that are considered “unavailable”. 
 
The items, net difference between expected and actual earnings on pension plan investments, 
change in assumptions, investment experience, and change in proportion, are reported on the 
Statement of Net Position. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in 
the period that the amounts become available. The Town has recorded $- related to the net 
difference between expected and actual earnings on pension plan investments, $7,157 related to 
the net difference between expected and actual experience, $17,208 related to changes in 
assumptions and $450,207 related to changes in proportion. 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
Full-time permanent employees are granted vacation benefits in varying amounts to specified 
maximums depending on their tenure with the Town.  Accumulated unused vacation may be carried 
from one calendar year to another but the amount of annual leave carryover cannot exceed 160 
hours.  Accumulated unused vacation is payable upon retirement or termination from employment.  
All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial 
statements.  A liability for compensated absences is not be reported in the governmental fund 
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balance sheet unless it was actually due and payable at year end for payments due to retired or 
terminated employees. 
 
The Town allows full-time employees to accumulate unused sick leave to a maximum of 90 days or 
720 hours.  Hours accumulated above these thresholds are forfeited.  Accumulated unused sick 
leave is not paid upon termination from employment or retirement.  Sick leave is only paid upon 
illness while in the employment of the Town.  Accordingly, no provision for accumulated sick leave 
has been made in the accompanying financial statements. 
 
Long-Term Obligations 
 
In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund statement of fund 
net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds 
using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or 
discount. 
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, 
as well as debt issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported 
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing 
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, 
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as expenditures. 
 
Fund Balance 
 
The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that 
comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the organization is bound to honor 
constraints on the specific purpose for which amounts in the funds can be spent.  
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements. In accordance with GASBS No. 54, the Town classifies fund 
balances in the governmental funds as follows: 
 

Nonspendable Fund Balance includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because 
they are not in spendable form or because of legal/contractual requirements. Examples are 
Prepaid Expenses and Inventory. 
 
Spendable Fund Balance includes Restricted, Committed, Assigned, and Unassigned 
designations: 
 

Restricted includes fund balance amounts that are limited for specific purposes which are 
externally imposed by providers, such as creditors or amounts constrained due to 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 
Committed includes fund balance amounts that are obligated to a specific purpose which 
are internally imposed by the government through formal action (Ordinances and 
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Resolutions) at the highest level of decision making authority (Board of Trustees). These 
commitments can only be overturned by a like action.  
 
Assigned includes spendable fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific 
purposes that are considered neither restricted nor committed. Undesignated excess Fund 
Balances may be assigned by the Board of Trustees, Mayor, or Town Clerk/Treasurer for 
specific purposes through the budget process or agenda items. The assigned designation 
may be reversed by the Board of Trustees at any public meeting. 
 
Unassigned includes residual positive fund balances within the General Fund, which have 
not been classified within the other above-mentioned categories. Unassigned Fund Balances 
may also include negative balances for any governmental fund if expenditures exceed 
amounts restricted, committed, or assigned for those specific purposes. 

 
See the Schedule of Fund Balances on page 65 for additional information about fund balances. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town’s policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources (committed, assigned, and unassigned) as they 
are needed. When unrestricted resources (committed, assigned, and unassigned) are available for 
use in the General Fund, it is the Town’s policy to use unassigned resources first, then assigned, and 
then committed as needed. When unrestricted resources (committed, assigned, and unassigned) are 
available for use in any other governmental fund, it is the Town’s policy to use committed resources 
first, then assigned, and then unassigned as needed. 
 
The Town does not have a formal minimum fund balance requirement.  
 
Net Position 
 
Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. The Town classifies net position in the 
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements as follows: 
 

Net Investment in Capital Assets includes the Town’s capital assets (net of accumulated 
depreciation) reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other 
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those 
assets. 
 
Restricted Net Position includes assets that have third-party (statutory, bond covenant, or 
granting agency) limitations on their use. The Town typically uses restricted assets first, as 
appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively defer the use until a future 
project. 
 
Unrestricted Net Position typically includes unrestricted liquid assets. The Town Council has the 
authority to revisit or alter this designation. 
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D.  Pensions 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of the New Mexico Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) and additions 
to/deductions from PERA’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they 
are reported by PERA, on the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of 
accounting. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported 
at fair value. 
 

E.  Inter-Fund Transactions 
 
Interfund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements, or transfers. Loans are 
reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon 
consolidation.  Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as 
revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges 
the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund 
transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or between proprietary 
funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements. 
 
Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance 
reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for 
appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources. 
 

F.  Income Taxes 
 
As a local government entity, the Town is not subject to federal or state income taxes.  The Town is 
generally no longer subject to examination by federal and state taxing authorities for years prior to 
2014. For the year ended June 30, 2017, no interest or penalties were recorded or included in the 
financial statements. 
 

G.  Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

 
NOTE 2 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
The Town adopts budgets for each individual fund (governmental and proprietary). 
 
In late winter or early spring, the Town prepares a budget calendar, thus starting the budgetary process 
for the upcoming June 1 fiscal year. Budget request forms are distributed to Town departments with a 
specified completion date. Legally mandated advance notices are formally published for grant 
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availability and other purposes once budget hearings have been scheduled. The budget hearings are 
then held with all Town department heads. Generally, in late May or early June, a budget meeting is 
held for tentative approval of the completed budget by the Board of Trustees. After tentative approval 
at the Town level, the budget is submitted to the New Mexico Department of Finance and 
Administration (DFA) for approval of a temporary operational budget beginning June 1. 
 
Immediately after July 1, when ending cash balances for the preceding fiscal year have been accurately 
ascertained, a final hearing is convened for finalization of the budget, and it is resubmitted to DFA for 
formal approval. None of the above budgetary processes are legally required to occur at any specified 
time; however DFA requires that the time frame be such that they (DFA) render their final budget 
approval no later than September 1 of the budget year in question. 
 
During the course of the fiscal year, the Town prepares monthly budget reports. Under New Mexico 
State law, each year's budget appropriation legally lapses at year-end. 
 
Budgetary Compliance – Budgetary control is required to be maintained at the individual fund level. 
 
Actual fund revenues may be either over or under the budgeted amounts; however, the variance is 
required to be reasonable, particularly in the case of over-budgeted revenues. Major over-budgeted 
revenues require a budget amendment as soon as the extent of the shortage is reasonably 
ascertainable. 
 
Budget Amendments – Budget increases and decreases can only be accomplished by Board of Trustee 
resolution, followed by DFA approval. Similarly, budget transfers must follow the same procedure. 
 
Budgetary Basis – State law prescribes that the Town's budget be prepared on the basis of cash receipts 
and cash expenditures. Therefore, budgetary comparisons shown in exhibits are prepared on a cash 
basis to compare actual revenues and expenditures with a cash basis budget as amended. 
 
The accompanying Statements of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget (Non-
GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual present comparisons of the legally adopted budget with actual data 
on a budgetary basis. 
 
Since accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on a budgetary basis differ 
significantly from those used to present financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) a reconciliation of resultant basis, 
perspective, equity and timing differences in the excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources of 
financial resources for the year ended June 30, 2017 is presented. Reconciliations between the Non-
GAAP budgetary basis amounts and the financial statements on the GAAP basis by fund can be found on 
each individual budgetary statement. 
 
NOTE 3 – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
The Town's cash balances consist of demand deposits, interest bearing savings accounts.  The majority 
of Town’s cash and investments are pooled. All interest income is accounted for in the related funds.  
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The Town does not have a deposit policy.  The Town’s cash and cash equivalents are listed on page 66 of 
this report. 
 
The following is a summary of the Town’s cash and cash equivalents balances by fund type as of June 30, 
2017: 

Fund Type Amount
Cash and equivalents

Governmental funds $ 887,652
Business-type activities 618,677
Fiduciary funds 15,653

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 1,521,982   

 
Custodial Credit Risk Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
Town funds may not be returned. The Town does not have a deposit policy for custodial risk 
 
State regulations require that uninsured demand deposits and deposit-type investments such as 
certificates of deposit be collateralized by the depository thrift or banking institution. At present, state 
statutes require that a minimum of fifty percent of uninsured balances on deposit with anyone 
institution must be collateralized, with higher requirements up to 102% for financially troubled 
institutions.  
 
Based on the above, the Town is required to obtain from each bank that is a depository for public funds 
pledged collateral in an aggregate amount equal to 50% of the public money in each account. The 
pledged securities must be in the name of the governmental entity and held by the entity or its agent. 
The types of collateral allowed are limited to direct obligations of the United States Government and all 
bonds issued by any agency or political subdivision of the State of New Mexico. The Town’s Schedule of 
Collateral is presented on page 67 of this report. 
 
As of June 30, 2017, the Town’s bank balances of $1,506,761 were exposed to custodial credit risk as 
follows: 

Insured through federal depository insurance $ 250,000     
Uninsured, collateralized with securities held by pledging financial
institution's trust department or agent in the Town's name. 1,073,884 
Uninsured and uncollateralized 182,877     

Total uninsured deposits $ 1,506,761 

 
NOTE 4 – INVESTMENTS 
 
A summary of the Town’s investments by fund type as of June 30, 2017 is as follows: 
 

Fund Type Amount
Governmental funds $ 244,625    
Business-type activities 45,716      

Total investments $ 290,341    
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The Town’s investments consisted of the following as of June 30, 2017: 
 

Credit Risk-
Investment Type Cost Basis Market Value Rating WAM (R) WAM (F)
NM LGIP Fund $ 290,341 290,341        AAAm 58 days 106 days

$ 290,341 290,341        
 

The State Treasurer is authorized to invest in short-term investment funds, with the advice and consent 
of the State Board of Finance, in accordance with Sections 6-10-10 I through 6-10-10 P and Sections 6-
10-10.1 A and E, NMSA 1978. 
 
The pool does not have unit shares.  Per Section 6-10-101F, NMSA 1978, at the end of each month all 
interest earned is distributed by the State Treasurer to the contributing entities in amounts directly 
proportionate to the respective amounts deposited in the fund and the length of time the fund amounts 
were invested.  Participation in the local government investment pool is voluntary. 
 
The investments are valued at fair value based on quoted market prices as of the valuation date.  
Investments owned by the Town and the investment strategy is outlined on New MexiGROW LGIP 
website http://www.stonm.org/NewMexiGROWLGIP/MonthlyInvestmentReports. 
 
NOTE 5 – RECEIVABLES 
 
Receivables as of June 30, 2017 are as follows: 
 

Governmental Activities Fire Town Public
General Protect Hall Safety Nonmajor Total

Fund Fund Fund Building Funds Receivables
Taxes:

Property $ 4,813       -             -             -              -                  4,813       
State 162,705  -             15,663 -              836             179,204  

Other intergovernmental 2,500       -             -             -              4,672         7,172       
Other -                532        -             -              -                  532          

Subtotal 170,018  532        15,663 -              5,508         191,721  
Less: Allowance for

uncollectibles -                -             -             -              -                  -                
Net Receivables $ 170,018  532        15,663 -              5,508         191,721  

 
Business-type Activities Joint

Util ity
Fund

Accounts $ 58,006    
Taxes:

State 3,902       
Subtotal 61,908    

Less: Allowance for
uncollectibles -                

Net Receivables $ 61,908    
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The Town has an established policy where an allowance for doubtful accounts is established for all 
receivable items outstanding over ninety (90) days. 
 
In accordance with GASB No. 33, the property tax revenues totaling $2,652 that were not collected 
within the period of availability have been reclassified as deferred inflows of resources in the 
governmental fund financial statements. 
 
NOTE 6 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
A summary of capital assets and changes occurring during the year ended June 30, 2017 follows. Land 
and construction in progress are not subject to depreciation. 
 

Balance Balance
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 06/30/16 Additions Deletions 06/30/17

Non-depreciable capital assets:
Land $ 1,399,500   -                 -                1,399,500   
Construction in progress 1,166,979   -                 -                1,166,979   

Tota l  non-depreciable capi ta l  assets 2,566,479   -                 -                2,566,479   

Capital assets being depreciated:
Bui ldings 4,750,161   -                 -                4,750,161   
Other improvements 2,335,879   42,810        -                2,378,689   
Machinery and equipment 2,069,793   105,800      (62,563)     2,113,030   

Tota l  capi ta l  assets  being depreciated 9,155,833   148,610      (62,563)     9,241,880   

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Bui ldings (1,278,160)  (140,505)    -                (1,418,665) 
Other improvements (550,540)     (116,972)    -                (667,512)    
Machinery and equipment (1,542,132)  (102,695)    62,563      (1,582,264) 

Tota l  accumulated depreciation (3,370,832)  (360,172)    62,563      (3,668,441) 
Tota l  capi ta l  assets  being depreciate 5,785,001   (211,562)    -                5,573,439   

Tota l  capi ta l  assets , net of depreciation $ 8,351,480   (211,562)    -                8,139,918   
 

Balance Balance
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 06/30/16 Additions Deletions 06/30/17

Capital assets being depreciated:
Uti l i ty system $ 3,148,582   -                 -                3,148,582   
Machinery and equipment 343,351      11,674        -                355,025      

Tota l  capi ta l  assets  being depreciated 3,491,933   11,674        -                3,503,607   

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Uti l i ty system (2,041,434)  (78,853)      -                (2,120,287) 
Machinery and equipment (321,929)     (12,376)      -                (334,305)    

Tota l  accumulated depreciation (2,363,363)  (91,229)      -                (2,454,592) 
Tota l  capi ta l  assets  being depreciate 1,128,570   (79,555)      -                1,049,015   

Tota l  capi ta l  assets , net of depreciation $ 1,128,570   (79,555)      -                1,049,015   
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Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2017 was charged to the following functions and 
funds: 

Governmental activities:  
General government $ 142,045    
Public safety 101,155    
Public works 116,972    

Total governmental activities $ 360,172    

Business type activities $ 91,229       
 

NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2017, was as follows: 
 

Amount due
Balance Balance within one

June 30, 2016 Increases Decreases June 30, 2017 year
Governmental funds debt

Compensated absences $ 33,235           72,830   (57,568)   48,497           38,798         
Notes payable 820,984         79,842   (70,401)   830,425         82,762         

Total governmental activities $ 854,219         152,672 (127,969) 878,922         121,560       

Business-type funds debt
Compensated absences $ 2,341             5,565     (4,091)     3,815             3,052            
Notes payable 22,287           -              -                22,287           3,288            

Total business-type activities $ 24,628           5,565     (4,091)     26,102           6,340            
 

Long-term liabilities are liquidated from the general fund and special revenue funds.  Business-type long-
term liabilities are liquidated from the Joint Utility Fund.  No short-term debt was incurred during fiscal 
year 2017. 
 
The annual principal and interest requirements on long-term debt outstanding as of June 30, 2017 are as 
follows. 
 
Governmental activities 
 
Notes payable 
 
NMFA – Town Hall Project 
 
On November 21, 2003, the Town borrowed $746,187 from the New Mexico Finance Authority.  The 
note matures on May 1, 2033, and accrues interest at rates between .880% and 4.58% per annum.  The 
proceeds of the loan were used for construction of the Town’s municipal complex.  The payments of 
principal and interest are paid from pledged governmental capital outlay gross receipts taxes.  The 
revenues pledged totaled $743,425 at June 30, 2017, and equal 51.6% of future capital outlay gross 
receipts tax at their current rate. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Town collected $90,112 in 
pledged revenues, and retired $46,437 in principal and interest on the aforementioned note. The Town 
has authorized the New Mexico Taxation and Revenue Department to intercept the required monthly 
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payment from their gross receipts tax remittances. The future payments required on the note payable 
are as follows: 
 

Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 22,331     24,109    46,440       
2019 23,280     23,162    46,442       
2020 24,293     22,152    46,445       
2021 25,372     21,075    46,447       
2022 26,522     19,929    46,451       

2023-2027 152,537  79,765    232,302     
2028-2032 192,890  39,514    232,404     
2033-2037 44,353     2,142      46,495       

Total $ 511,578  231,848 743,426     
 

NMFA – Fire Pumper Truck 
 
On January 4, 2013, the Town borrowed $319,171 from the New Mexico Finance Authority.  The note 
matures on May 1, 2022, and accrues interest at rates between .380% and 2.15% per annum.  The 
proceeds of the loan were for the purchase of a fire pumper truck.  The payments of principal and 
interest are paid from pledged governmental capital outlay gross receipts taxes.  The revenues pledged 
totaled $185,202 at June 30, 2017, and equal 8.0% of future gross receipts tax at their current rate. 
During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Town collected $466,827 in pledged revenues, and retired 
$37,040 in principal and interest on the aforementioned note. The Town has authorized the New Mexico 
Taxation and Revenue Department to intercept the required monthly payment from their gross receipts 
tax remittances. The future payments required on the note payable are as follows: 
 

Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 34,078     2,963      37,041       
2019 34,486     2,554      37,040       
2020 34,986     2,054      37,040       
2021 35,571     1,470      37,041       
2022 36,261     780         37,041       

2023-2027 -                -               -                  
Total $ 175,382  9,821      185,203     

 
NMFA – Police Vehicles 
 
On January 8, 2016, the Town borrowed $78,826 from the New Mexico Finance Authority.  The note 
matures on May 1, 2021, and accrues interest at 4.54% per annum.  The proceeds of the loan were for 
the purchase of police vehicles.  The payments of principal and interest are paid from pledged 
governmental capital outlay gross receipts taxes.  The revenues pledged totaled $65,969 at June 30, 
2017, and equal 3.5% of future gross receipts tax at their current rate. During the year ended June 30, 
2017, the Town collected $466,827 in pledged revenues, and retired $16,492 in principal and interest on 
the aforementioned note. The future payments required on the note payable are as follows: 
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Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 15,633     860         16,493       
2019 15,791     702         16,493       
2020 15,983     509         16,492       
2021 16,216     276         16,492       
2022 -                -               -                  

Total $ 63,623     2,347      65,970       
 

NMFA – Fire Vehicles 
 
On January 8, 2016, the Town borrowed $79,842 from the New Mexico Finance Authority.  The note 
matures on May 1, 2024, and accrues interest at 1.13% per annum.  The proceeds of the loan were for 
the purchase of fire vehicles.  The payments of principal and interest are paid from pledged fire 
protection funds.  The revenues pledged totaled $84,018 at June 30, 2017, and equal 4.5% of future fire 
protection funds at their current rate. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Town collected 
$188,506 in pledged revenues, and retired $-0- in principal and interest on the aforementioned note. 
The future payments required on the note payable are as follows: 
 

Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 10,720     1,283      12,003       
2019 11,262     740         12,002       
2020 11,344     659         12,003       
2021 11,440     563         12,003       
2022 11,553     449         12,002       

2023-2027 23,523     482         24,005       
Total $ 79,842     4,176      84,018       

 
The aggregated future payments required on the NMFA notes payable are as follows. 
 

Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 82,762     29,215    111,977     
2019 84,819     27,158    111,977     
2020 86,606     25,374    111,980     
2021 88,599     23,384    111,983     
2022 74,336     21,158    95,494       

2023-2027 176,060  80,247    256,307     
2028-2032 192,890  39,514    232,404     
2033-2037 44,353     2,142      46,495       

Total $ 830,425  248,192 1,078,617 
 

Business-type activities 
 

Notes payable 
 
NMFA – WTB 122 
 

On December 19, 2008, the Town borrowed $10,186 from the New Mexico Finance Authority.  The note 
matures on June 1, 2028, and carries a 0% interest rate; however, a .25% administrative fee is assessed 
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with each payment.  The proceeds of the loan are to be used for the water line extension project.  The 
payments of principal and the administrative fees are paid from pledged net system revenues of the 
joint water/wastewater utility system.  The revenues pledged totaled $6,446 at June 30, 2017, and equal 
1.1% of future estimated net revenues at their current rate. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the 
Town collected $53,772 in pledged revenues, and retired $-0- in principal and interest on the 
aforementioned note. The future payments required on the note payable are as follows: 
 

Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 1,044       30            1,074         
2019 524          13            537             
2020 525          12            537             
2021 527          11            538             
2022 528          9              537             

2023-2027 2,660       27            2,687         
2028-2032 535          1              536             

Total $ 6,343       103         6,446         
 

NMFA – WTB 159 
 
On May 14, 2010, the Town borrowed $22,609 from the New Mexico Finance Authority.  The note 
matures on June 1, 2030, and carries a 0% interest rate; however, a .25% administrative fee is assessed 
with each payment.  The proceeds of the loan are to be used for the water line extension project.  The 
payments of principal and the administrative fees are paid from pledged net system revenues of the 
joint water/wastewater utility system.  The revenues pledged totaled $16,244 at June 30, 2017, and 
equal 2.3% of future estimated net revenues at their current rate. During the year ended June 30, 2017, 
the Town collected $53,772 in pledged revenues, and retired $1,161 in principal and interest on the 
aforementioned note. The future payments required on the note payable are as follows:  

Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 2,244       77            2,321         
2019 1,126       34            1,160         
2020 1,129       31            1,160         
2021 1,132       29            1,161         
2022 1,135       26            1,161         

2023-2027 5,715       86            5,801         
2028-2032 3,463       17            3,480         

Total $ 15,944     300         16,244       
 

NMFA – WTB 3558 
 

On November 4, 2016, the Town borrowed $106,800 from the New Mexico Finance Authority.  The note 
matures on June 1, 2038, and carries a 0% interest rate; however, a .25% administrative fee is assessed 
with each payment.  The proceeds of the loan are to be used for the water line extension project.  The 
payments of principal and the administrative fees are paid from pledged net system revenues of the 
joint water/wastewater utility system.  The Town did not draw any of the available loan funds during the 
year ended June 30, 2017.  It is expected that the loan funds will be drawn in the next fiscal year. 
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The revenues pledged totaled $110,056 at June 30, 2017, and equal 9.7% of future estimated net 
revenues at their current rate. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Town collected $53,772 in 
pledged revenues, and retired $-0- in principal and interest on the aforementioned note.  
 
The aggregated future payments required on the NMFA notes payable are as follows. 
 

Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 3,288       107         3,395         
2019 1,650       47            1,697         
2020 1,654       43            1,697         
2021 1,659       40            1,699         
2022 1,663       35            1,698         

2023-2027 8,375       113         8,488         
2028-2032 3,998       18            4,016         

Total $ 22,287     403         22,690       
 

NOTE 8 – SEGMENT INFORMATION 
 
The Town issues separate revenue bonds and notes payable to finance its water and wastewater 
departments. The two departments are accounted for in a single fund, but investors in those bonds and 
notes rely solely on the revenue generated by the individual activities for repayment. Summary financial 
information for each department is presented below. The Water Department operates the Town’s water 
supply system. The Wastewater Department operates the Town’s wastewater treatment plant, pumping 
stations, and collection systems. 
 

Water Wastewater
Dept Dept

Assets :
Current assets $ 269,081    88,742             
Capi ta l  assets 1,049,015 -                       

Tota l  assets 1,318,096 88,742             
Deferred outflows  of resources

Tota l  deferred outflows  of resources -                -                       
Liabi l i ties

Current l iabi l i ties 34,836      10,866             
Noncurrent l iabi l i ties 26,102      -                       

Tota l  l iabi l i ties 60,938      10,866             
Deferred inflows  of resources

Tota l  deferred inflows  of resources -                -                       
Net pos i tion

Net investment in capi ta l  assets 1,022,913 -                       
Unrestricted 234,245    77,876             

Tota l  net pos i tion $ 1,257,158 77,876             

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
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Operating revenues  (pledged aga inst debt) $ 301,999    176,339           
Depreciation expense (91,229)     -                       
Other operating expenses (219,622)   (150,551)          

Operating income (8,852)       25,788             
Nonoperating revenues  (expenses):

Miscel laneous 977           9,026               
Investment income 324           -                       
Interest expense -                -                       

Change in net pos i tion (7,551)       34,814             
Beginning net pos i tion 1,264,709 43,062             
Ending net pos i tion $ 1,257,158 77,876             

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Net cash provided (used) by:
Operating activi ties $ 82,198      22,826             
Noncapita l  financing activi ties 977           9,026               
Capi ta l  and related financing activi ties (11,673)     -                       
Investing activi ties 297           -                       

Net increase (decrease) 71,799      31,852             
Beginning cash and cash equiva lents 165,299    43,376             
Ending cash and cash equiva lents $ 237,098    75,228             

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

 
NOTE 9 – INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 
 
The Town recorded interfund transfers to reflect activity occurring between funds.  Transfers and 
payments within the Town are substantially for the purpose of subsidizing operating functions and 
funding various projects within the Town. All transfers made during the year were considered routine 
and were consistent with the general characteristics of the Town’s transfer policy.  
 
The composition of interfund transfers during the year ended June 30, 2017 was as follows: 
 

Non-Major
Govern-

General mental Total
General $ -                     41,231         41,231         

Fire Protection Fund -                     17,669         17,669         

Public Safety Building 12,507         71,155         83,662         

Non-Major Governmental 17,311         -                     17,311         

Total $ 29,818         130,055       159,873       

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
O

ut

Transfers In

 
The Town recorded interfund receivables/payables to reflect temporary loans between funds. The 
purpose of the loans was to cover cash shortages until grant reimbursements or other funding measures 
could be obtained.  All interfund balances are expected to be repaid within one year.   

79



 
Interfund balances as of June 30, 2017, are as follows: 
 

Due To Fund Due From Fund Amount
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

General fund Street improvements fund 453
$ 453            

 
NOTE 10 – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries and natural disasters. 
 
Town of Mesilla has joined together with other local governments in the state and obtained insurance 
through the New Mexico Self-Insurers Fund, a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common 
risk management and insurance program for local governments.  The Town pays an annual premium to 
New Mexico Self-Insured Fund for general insurance coverage and all risk of loss is transferred.  The 
premium paid for the year ended June 30, 2017 was $84,480. 
 
NOTE 11 – PERA PENSION PLAN 
 
Plan description. Public Employees Retirement Fund is a cost-sharing, multiple employer defined benefit 
pension plan. This fund has six divisions of members, including State General, State Police/Adult 
Correction Officers, Municipal General, Municipal Police/Detention Officers, Municipal Fire, and State 
Legislative Divisions, and offers 24 different types of coverage within the PERA plan. All assets 
accumulated may be used to pay benefits, including refunds of member contributions, to any of the plan 
members or beneficiaries, as defined by the terms of this plan. Certain coverage plans are only 
applicable to a specific division. Eligibility for membership in the Public Employees Retirement Fund is 
set forth in the Public Employees Retirement Act (Chapter 10, Article 11, NMSA 1978). Except as 
provided for in the Volunteer Firefighters Retirement Act (10-11A-1 to 10-11A-7, NMSA 1978), the 
Judicial Retirement Act (10-12B-1 to 10-12B-19, NMSA 1978), the Magistrate Retirement Act (10-12C-1 
to 10-12C-18, NMSA 1978), and the Educational Retirement Act (Chapter 22, Article 11, NMSA 1978), 
each employee and elected official of every affiliated public employer is required to be a member in the 
Public Employees Retirement Fund, unless specifically excluded. 
 
PERA issues a publicly available financial report and a comprehensive annual financial report that can be 
obtained at http://saonm.org using the Audit Report Search function for agency 366. 
 
Benefits Provided – Tier I - Benefits are generally available at age 65 with five or Benefits are generally 
available at age 65 with five or more years of service or after 25 years of service regardless of age for 
TIER I members. Provisions also exist for retirement between ages 60 and 65, with varying amounts of 
service required. Certain police and fire members may retire at any age with 20 or more years of service 
for Tier I members. Generally, the amount of retirement pension is based on final average salary, which 
is defined under Tier I as the average of salary for the 36 consecutive months of credited service 
producing the largest average; credited service; and the pension factor of the applicable coverage plan. 
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Monthly benefits vary depending upon the plan under which the member qualifies, ranging from 2% to 
3.5% of the member’s final average salary per year of service. The maximum benefit that can be paid to 
a retiree may not exceed a range of 60% to 90% of the final average salary, depending on the division. 
Benefits for duty and non-duty death and disability and for post-retirement survivors’ annuities are also 
available. 
 
TIER II – The retirement age and service credit requirements for normal retirement for PERA state and 
municipal general members hired increased effective July 1, 2013 with the passage of Senate Bill 27 in 
the 2013 Legislative Session. Under the new requirements (Tier II), general members are eligible to 
retire at any age if the member has at least eight years of service credit and the sum of the member’s 
age and service credit equals at least 85 or at age 67 with 8 or more years of service credit. General 
members hired on or before June 30, 2013 (Tier I) remain eligible to retire at any age with 25 or more 
years of service credit. Under Tier II, police and firefighters in Plans 3, 4 and 5 are eligible to retire at any 
age with 25 or more years of service credit. State police and adult correctional officers, peace officers 
and municipal juvenile detention officers will remain in 25-year retirement plans, however, service 
credit will no longer be enhanced by 20%. All public safety members in Tier II may retire at age 60 with 6 
or more years of service credit. Generally, under Tier II pension factors were reduced by .5%, employee 
Contribution increased 1.5 percent and effective July 1, 2014 employer contributions were raised .05 
percent. The computation of final average salary increased as the average of salary for 60 consecutive 
months. 
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Contributions. See PERA’s compressive annual financial report for Contribution provided description  
 

 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions: The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the 
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation 
as of June 30, 2015. The total pension liability was rolled-forward from the valuation date to the plan 
year ending June 30, 2016 using generally accepted actuarial principles. Therefore, the employer’s 
portion was established as of the measurement date of June 30, 2016. There were no significant events 
or changes in benefit provision that required an adjustment to the roll-forward liabilities as of June 30, 
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2016. The Town’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Town‘s long-
term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating entities, actuarially determined. 
 
For PERA Fund Division Municipal General: At June 30, 2017, the Town of Mesilla reported a liability of 
$733,328 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. At June 30, 2016, the Town of Mesilla’s 
proportion was 0.0459%, which was a decrease of 0.0535% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 
2015. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Town recognized pension expense of $90,944. At June 30, 2017, 
the Town of Mesilla reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions from the following sources: 

 Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

 Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 36,640           7,157           

Changes of assumptions 43,001           122              

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 134,931         -                    

Changes in proportion and differences between Town 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions -                       446,172      

Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date 36,030           -                    
$ 250,602         453,451      

 
$36,030 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Town’s 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year ended June 30:
2018 $ (102,122) 
2019 (102,122) 
2020 (56,464)    
2021 21,829     
2022 -                

Thereafter $ -                
 

For PERA Fund Division Municipal Police: At June 30, 2017, the Town of Mesilla reported a liability of 
$947,374 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. At June 30, 2016, the Town of Mesilla’s 
proportion was 0.1284%, which was an increase of 0.0018% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 
2015. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Town recognized pension expense of ($77,071). At June 30, 2017, 
the Town of Mesilla reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions from the following sources: 
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 Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

 Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 69,550           -                    

Changes of assumptions 62,749           17,086        

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 149,833         -                    

Changes in proportion and differences between Town 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 89,778           -                    

Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date 51,730           -                    
$ 423,640         17,086        

 
$51,730 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Town’s 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year ended June 30:
2018 $ 102,730   
2019 102,730   
2020 110,846   
2021 38,518     
2022 -                

Thereafter $ -                
 

For PERA Fund Division Municipal Fire: At June 30, 2017, the Town of Mesilla reported a liability of 
$323,544 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. At June 30, 2016, the Town of Mesilla’s 
proportion was 0.0485%, which was a decrease of 0.0011% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 
2015. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Town recognized pension expense of ($28,120). At June 30, 2017, 
the Town of Mesilla reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions from the following sources: 

 Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

 Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 14,651           -                    

Changes of assumptions 17,114           -                    

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 26,950           -                    

Changes in proportion and differences between Town 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 728                 4,035           

Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date 12,390           -                    
$ 71,833           4,035           
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$12,390 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Town’s 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year ended June 30:
2018 $ 15,284     
2019 15,284     
2020 17,978     
2021 6,862       
2022 -                

Thereafter $ -                
 

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following significant actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement: 
 

Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2015
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Amortization method Level percentage of pay, open
Amortization period Solved for based on statutory rates
Asset valuation method Fair value
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 7.48% annual rate, net of investment expense
Projected benefit payment 100 years
Payroll  growth 2.75% for first 10 years, then 3.25% annual rate
Projected salary increases 2.75% to 14.00% annual rate

Includes inflation at 2.25% annual rate first 10 years
2.75% rate all  other years

Mortality Assumption

RP-2000 Mortality Tables (Combined table for healthy
post-retirement, Employee table for active members,
and Disable table for disabled retirees before
retirement age) with projection to 2018 using Scale AA.

Experience Study Dates July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2013 (demographic) and July 
1, 2010 through June 20, 2015 (economic)

 
The total pension liability, net pension liability, and certain sensitivity information are based on an 
actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2015. The total pension liability was rolled-forward from 
the valuation date to the plan year ended June 30, 2016.  These assumptions were adopted by the Board 
use in the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The 
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target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are 
summarized in the following table: 
 

ALL FUNDS - Asset Class
Target 

Allocation

Long-term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return

Global Equity 43.50% 7.39%
Risk Reduciton & Mitigation 21.50% 1.79%
Credit Oriented Fixed Income 15.00% 5.77%
Real Assets 20.00% 7.35%

Total 100.00%
 

Discount rate. A single discount rate of 7.48% was used to measure the total pension liability as of June 
30, 2016. This single discount rate was based on a long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments of 7.48%, compounded annually, net of expense. Based on the stated assumptions and the 
projection of cash flows, the plan’s fiduciary net position and future contributions were projected to be 
available to finance all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all period of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability. 
 
The projections of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate assumed that plan member 
and employer contributions will be made at the current statutory levels. 
 
 
Sensitivity of the Town’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount 
rate. The following presents the Town‘s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using 
the discount rate of 7.48 percent, as well as what the Town’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.48 
percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.48 percent) than the current rate: 
 

PERA Fund Division - Municipal General 1% 
Decrease 
(6.48%)

Current 
Discount Rate 

(7.48%)

1% 
Increase 
(8.48%)

Town's proportionate share of the net pension 
l iabil ity $ 1,093,326 733,328         434,727  

 
PERA Fund Division - Municipal Police 1% 

Decrease 
(6.48%)

Current 
Discount Rate 

(7.48%)

1% 
Increase 
(8.48%)

Town's proportionate share of the net pension 
l iabil ity $ 1,383,822 947,374         582,232  

PERA Fund Division - Municipal Fire 1% 
Decrease 
(6.48%)

Current 
Discount Rate 

(7.48%)

1% 
Increase 
(8.48%)

Town's proportionate share of the net pension 
l iabil ity $ 423,194     323,544         241,692  
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Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position 
is available in separately issued PERA’S financial reports. 
 
NOTE 12 – POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 
The Retiree Health Care Act, Chapter IV, Article 7C NMSA 1978 provides a comprehensive core group 
health insurance for persons who have retired from certain public service in New Mexico.  The Town has 
elected not to participate in the post-employment health insurance plan. 
 
NOTE 13 – OPERATING LEASES 
 
The Town has entered into a number of operating leases, which contain cancellation provisions and are 
subject to annual appropriations. The rent expenditures for these leases were primarily from the 
General Fund. Future minimum lease payments are: 
 

Fiscal Year  
Ending June 30, Amount

2018 $ 3,482       
2019 3,482       
2020 3,337       
2021 -                
2022 -                

Total $ 10,301     

 
Rental payments charged to current operations for the year ended June 30, 2017 totaled $3,482. 
 
NOTE 14 – FUND DEFICITS AND NON-COMPLIANCE 
 
Deficit Fund Balances 
 
The following non-major funds incurred a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2017: 
 

Fund Fund Type Amount
Lodgers' tax fund Special revenue fund $ (221)           
Street improvements fund Special revenue fund (469)           
Events fund Special revenue fund $ (2,600)        

 
Management intends to transfer sufficient funds from General Fund to cover any deficits. 
 
Legal Compliance with Budget 
 
The Town was in compliance with Section 6-6-6 of the New Mexico State Statues regarding legal 
compliance with approved budgets for the year ended June 30, 2017. 
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NOTE 15 – CONTINGENCIES 
 
The Town participates in a number of federal, state, and county programs that are fully or partially 
funded by grants received from other governmental units.  Expenditures financed by grants are subject 
to audit by the appropriate grantor government.  If expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance 
with grant program regulations, the Town may be required to reimburse the grantor government. 
 
On May 25, 2017, the Town received notification that as a result of an audit conducted by a federal 
oversight body, the Town had been reimbursed for $21,359 in federal funds that were not allowable 
costs under the grant agreement.  As a result, the Town was ordered to repay this amount.  As of June 
30, 2017, the Town was still appealing the decision, however subsequent to year end, the Town repaid 
the amount owed to the federal agency.  As a result of this, a contingent liability in the amount of 
$21,359 was reported in the Town’s financial statements. 
 
As of June 30, 2017, significant amounts of grant expenditures have not been audited by the grantor 
agencies. Management believes that any disallowed expenditures discovered in subsequent audits, if 
any, will not have a material effect on any of the individual funds of the overall financial position of the 
Town. 
 
The Town is party to various legal proceedings, which are the unavoidable results of governmental 
operations.  Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, it is the opinion of 
the Town’s legal counsel that resolution of these matters will not have a material effect on the financial 
condition of the Town. 
 
NOTE 16 – COMMITMENTS 
 
Future commitments for engineering and construction projects relating to construction or major repairs 
in progress aggregated approximately $33,145 as of June 30, 2017.  The total amounts spent as of June 
30, 2017 on the projects was $1,552,697.  The percentage of completion of the existing projects varies 
based on the project.  These projects will be paid in future periods as work is performed.  Payment will 
be made with proceeds remaining from debt issuances, operating revenues, and future grants to be 
received. 
 
NOTE 17 – EVALUATION OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
The Town has evaluated subsequent events through December 13, 2017, the date which the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 
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2017 2016 2015
Town of Mesilla’s proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.0459% 0.0994% 0.1035%

Town of Mesilla’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) $ 733,328       $ 1,013,469   $ 807,411      

Town of Mesilla’s covered-employee payroll $ 483,316 $ 567,421 $ 1,037,985

Town of Mesilla’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a 
percentage of its covered-employee payroll 151.73% 178.61% 77.79%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 69.18% 76.99% 81.29%

Last 10 Fiscal Years*

*The amounts presented were determined as of June 30. This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information
for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the Town will present information for those years for which information is
available. 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE
NET PENSION LIABILITY OF PERA FUND DIVISION MUNICIPAL GENERAL

Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) Plan

See independent auditors' report
See notes to required supplementary information
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2017 2016 2015
Town of Mesilla’s proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.1284% 0.1266% 0.0932%

Town of Mesilla’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) $ 947,374      $ 608,764      $ 303,822      

Town of Mesilla’s covered-employee payroll $ 305,847 $ 290,571 $ 266,700

Town of Mesilla’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a 
percentage of its covered-employee payroll 309.75% 209.51% 113.92%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 69.18% 76.99% 81.29%

*The amounts presented were determined as of June 30. This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show
information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the Town will present information for those years for
which information is available. 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE
NET PENSION LIABILITY OF PERA FUND DIVISION MUNICIPAL POLICE

Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

See independent auditors' report
See notes to required supplementary information
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2017 2016 2015
Town of Mesilla’s proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.0485% 0.0496% 0.0493%

Town of Mesilla’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) $ 323,544      $ 255,995      $ 205,778      

Town of Mesilla’s covered-employee payroll $ 57,229 $ 56,534 $ 56,596

Town of Mesilla’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a 
percentage of its covered-employee payroll 565.35% 452.82% 363.59%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 69.18% 76.99% 81.29%

*The amounts presented were determined as of June 30. This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show
information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the Town will present information for those years for
which information is available. 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE
NET PENSION LIABILITY OF PERA FUND DIVISION MUNICIPAL FIRE

Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

See independent auditors' report
See notes to required supplementary information
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2017 2016 2015
Contractually required contribution $ 36,030       $ 36,822       $ 79,763        

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 36,030       36,822       79,763        

Contribution deficiency (excess) -                  -                  -                  

Town's covered-employee payroll 483,316 567,421 1,037,985

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 7.45% 6.49% 7.68%

* This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend
is compiled, the Town will present information for those years for which information is available. 

PERA Municipal General Division

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) Plan

Last 10 Fiscal Years*

See independent auditors' report
See notes to required supplementary information
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2017 2016 2015
Contractually required contribution $ 51,730       $ 46,212       $ 51,835       

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 51,730       46,212       51,835       

Contribution deficiency (excess) -                  -                  -                  

Town’s covered-employee payroll 305,847 290,571 266,700

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 16.91% 15.90% 19.44%

* This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year
trend is compiled, the Town will present information for those years for which information is available. 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) Plan

PERA Municipal Police Division
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

See independent auditors' report
See notes to required supplementary information
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2017 2016 2015
Contractually required contribution $ 12,390       $ 12,240       $ 12,240       

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 12,390       12,240       12,240       

Contribution deficiency (excess) -                  -                  -                  

Town’s covered-employee payroll 57,229 56,534 56,596

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 21.65% 21.65% 21.63%

* This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year
trend is compiled, the Town will present information for those years for which information is available. 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) Plan

PERA Municipal Fire Division
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

See independent auditors' report
See notes to required supplementary information
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Changes of benefit terms: The PERA and COLA and retirement eligibility benefits changes in recent years 
are described in Note 1 of PERA’s CFAR. https://www.saonm.org 
 
Assumptions: The Public Employ Retirement Association of New Mexico Annual Actuarial Valuations as 
of June 2016 report is available at http://www.nmpera.org/ 
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
 
Correction Fees – To account for the collection and expenditures of fees charged on citations for court 
appearances (NMSA 35-14-11). 
 
Emergency Medical Services – To account for the acquisition of emergency medical equipment financed 
through a grant from the state of New Mexico (NMSA 24-0A4-6). 
 
Fire Fund Grant – To account for the operation and acquisition of assets for the Fire Department.  This 
fund is financed through state grants (NMSA 59A-53-1). 
 
Law Enforcement – To account for receipts and disbursements of State Funds Chapter 289, Law of 1983.  
These funds are to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of the police force (NMSA 29-13-3) 
 
Lodgers’ Tax – To account for the operations of promotional activities of the Town of Mesilla.  Financing 
is provided primarily by specific tax levy on area motels (NMSA 14-37-16). 
 
Street Improvement – To account for the receipts, disbursements and transfer of funds received from 
state shared gasoline taxes.  These funds are designated for street and highway maintenance and 
improvements (NMSA 7-24A-10).  
 
Recreation – To account for the operations and maintenance of recreation facilities.  Financing is 
provided by a cigarette tax levy to the extent that other revenues are not sufficient to provide such 
services (NMSA 7-12-15 and 16). 
 
Court Automation Fund – To account for fees collected upon conviction from persons convicted of 
violating any Town ordinance relating to the operation of motor vehicle or any ordinance that may be 
enforced by the imposition of a jail term (NMSA 35-14-11). 
 
Event Fund – To account for receipts from the rental fees for the promotion and organization of Town 
Fiestas and other events. The creation and maintenance of a separate fund was established by Town 
resolution. 
 
Stonegarden – To account for federal grant revenues from the Department of Justice and the related 
expenditures.  This fund is required by the federal grant. 
 
School Resource Officer Grant – To account for state grant revenue and expenditures from the 
Department of Public Safety program.  The creation and maintenance of a separate fund was 
established by Town resolution. 
 
Youth Conservation Corps – To account for state grant revenue and expenditures from the Youth 
Conservation Corps program.  The creation and maintenance of a separate fund was established by 
Town resolution. 
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CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 
 
ICI fund – The ICI fund is used to account for state funds for capital outlay expenditures. 
 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
 
Fire Truck Loan – To account for debt service requirements related to the Town’s NMFA Fire truck loan. 
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 Special 
Revenue 

Funds 

 Capital 
Project 
Funds 

 Debt 
Service 
Funds  Total 

Assets and deferred inflows of resources:
Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 110,474         -                  39,384        149,858         
Investments 52,512           -                  -                  52,512           
Receivables

Taxes receivable 835                 -                  -                  835                 
Due from other funds -                      -                  -                  -                      
Due from other governments 4,672             -                  -                  4,672             

Total assets 168,493         -                  39,384        207,877         

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Total deferred outflows of resources -                      -                  -                  -                      

Total assests and
deferred outflows of resources $ 168,493         -                  39,384        207,877         

Liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 4,072             -                  -                  4,072             
Accrued payroll liabilities 1,556             -                  -                  1,556             
Due to other fund 453                 -                  -                  453                 

Total liabilities 6,081             -                  -                  6,081             

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
"Unavailable" revenues -                      -                  -                  -                      
Total deferred inflows of resources -                      -                  -                  -                      

Fund balances:
Nonspendable -                      -                  -                  -                      
Restricted 25,477           -                  39,384        64,861           
Committed 140,225         -                  -                  140,225         
Assigned -                      -                  -                  -                      
Unassigned (3,290)            -                  -                  (3,290)            

Total fund balances 162,412         -                  39,384        201,796         

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances: $ 168,493         -                  39,384        207,877         

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

As of June 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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 Special 
Revenue 

Funds 
 Capital 

Projects Funds 
 Debt Service 

Funds  Totals 
Revenues:

Taxes
Gross receipts $ -                       -                       37,040             37,040             
Other 14,434             -                       -                       14,434             

Charges for services 10,610             -                       -                       10,610             
Fines and forfeitures 30,503             -                       -                       30,503             
Intergovernmental revenue

Federal grants 27,801             -                       -                       27,801             
State grants 222,588          17,810             -                       240,398          

Interest income 303                  -                       479                  782                  
Miscellaneous income 24,701             -                       -                       24,701             

Total revenues 330,940          17,810             37,519             386,269          

Expenditures:
Current:

General government -                       -                       -                       -                       
Public safety 233,679          -                       -                       233,679          
Public works -                       -                       -                       -                       
Culture and recreation 9,840               -                       -                       9,840               
Health and welfare -                       -                       -                       -                       

Capital outlay 164,254          111,630          -                       275,884          
Debt service

Principal 15,203             -                       33,757             48,960             
Interest 1,289               -                       3,284               4,573               

Total expenditures 424,265          111,630          37,041             572,936          

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures
(93,325)           (93,820)           478                  (186,667)         

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from debt issuance -                       -                       -                       -                       
Transfers in 58,900             71,154             -                       130,054          
Transfers out (17,310)           -                       -                       (17,310)           

Total other financing sources (uses): 41,590             71,154             -                       112,744          

Net change in fund balances (51,735)           (22,666)           478                  (73,923)           

Beginning fund balance 214,147          22,666             38,906             275,719          

Ending fund balance $ 162,412          -                       39,384             201,796          

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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 Correction 
Fees 

 Emergency 
Medical 
Services 

 Fire Fund 
Grant 

 Law 
Enforcement 

 Lodgers' 
Tax 

 Street 
Improve-

ments  Recreation 
Assets and deferred inflows of resources:

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 78,997          527                   24,902          48                       -                 -                  6,000             
Investments 52,512          -                        -                     -                          -                 -                  -                     
Receivables

Taxes receivable -                     -                        -                     -                          -                 835             -                     
Total assets 131,509        527                   24,902          48                       -                 835             6,000             

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Total deferred outflows of resources -                     -                        -                     -                          -                 -                  -                     

Total assests and
deferred outflows of resources $ 131,509        527                   24,902          48                       -                 835             6,000             

Liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ -                     -                        -                     -                          221            851             400                
Due to other funds -                     -                        -                     -                          -                 453             -                     

Total liabilities -                     -                        -                     -                          221            1,304         400                

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
"Unavailable" revenues -                     -                        -                     -                          -                 -                  -                     
Total deferred inflows of resources -                     -                        -                     -                          -                 -                  -                     

Fund balances:
Nonspendable -                     -                        -                     -                          -                 -                  -                     
Restricted -                     527                   24,902          48                       -                 -                  -                     
Committed 131,509        -                        -                     -                          -                 -                  5,600             
Assigned -                     -                        -                     -                          -                 -                  -                     
Unassigned -                     -                        -                     -                          (221)           (469)           -                     

Total fund balances 131,509        527                   24,902          48                       (221)           (469)           5,600             

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances: $ 131,509        527                   24,902          48                       -                 835             6,000             

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
As of June 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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 Court 
Automation 

 Events 
Fund 

 Stone 
Garden 

 School 
Resource 

Officer 

 Youth 
Conservation 

Corps  Totals 
Assets and deferred inflows of resources:

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ -                        -                  -                 -                  -                       110,474     
Investments -                        -                  -                 -                  -                       52,512       
Receivables

Taxes receivable -                        -                  -                 -                  -                       835             
Due from other funds -                        -                  -                 -                  -                       -                  
Due from other governments -                        -                  -                 4,672         -                       4,672         

Total assets $ -                        -                  -                 4,672         -                       168,493     

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Total deferred outflows of resources -                        -                  -                 -                  -                       -                  

Total assests and
deferred outflows of resources -                        -                  -                 4,672         -                       168,493     

Liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ -                        2,600         -                 -                  -                       4,072         
Accrued payroll liabilities -                        -                  -                 1,556         -                       1,556         
Due to other funds -                        -                  -                 -                  -                       453             

Total liabilities -                        2,600         -                 1,556         -                       6,081         

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
"Unavailable" revenues -                        -                  -                 -                  -                       -                  
Total deferred inflows of resources -                        -                  -                 -                  -                       -                  

Fund balances:
Nonspendable -                        -                  -                 -                  -                       -                  
Restricted -                        -                  -                 -                  -                       25,477       
Committed -                        -                  -                 3,116         -                       140,225     
Assigned -                        -                  -                 -                  -                       -                  
Unassigned -                        (2,600)       -                 -                  -                       (3,290)        

Total fund balances -                        (2,600)       -                 3,116         -                       162,412     

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances: $ -                        -                  -                 4,672         -                       168,493     

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

As of June 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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 ICI Fund  Totals 
Assets and deferred inflows of resources:

Assets:
Receivables

Due from other governments $ -                    -                      
Total assets -                    -                      

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Total deferred outflows of resources -                    -                      

Total assests and
deferred outflows of resources $ -                    -                      

Liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ -                    -                      

Total liabilities -                    -                      

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Total deferred inflows of resources -                    -                      

Fund balances:
Nonspendable -                    -                      
Restricted -                    -                      
Committed -                    -                      
Assigned -                    -                      
Unassigned -                    -                      

Total fund balances -                    -                      

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances: $ -                    -                      

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

As of June 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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 Fire Truck 
Loan  Totals 

Assets and deferred inflows of resources:
Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 39,384           39,384           
Total assets 39,384           39,384           

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Total deferred outflows of resources -                      -                      

Total assests and
deferred outflows of resources $ 39,384           39,384           

Liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ -                      -                      

Total liabilities -                      -                      

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Total deferred inflows of resources -                      -                      

Fund balances:
Nonspendable -                      -                      
Restricted 39,384           39,384           
Committed -                      -                      
Assigned -                      -                      
Unassigned -                      -                      

Total fund balances 39,384           39,384           

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances: $ 39,384           39,384           

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

As of June 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Correction 
Fees

Emergency 
Medical 
Services

Fire Fund 
Grant

Law 
Enforcement

Lodgers' 
Tax

Street 
Improvements Recreation

Revenues:
Taxes

Other $ -                     -                      -                     -                          9,420        5,014                    -                     
Fines and forfeitures 28,478          -                      -                     2,025                 -                 -                             -                     
Intergovernmental revenue

State grants -                     -                      70,676          24,800               -                 61,508                  -                     
Interest income 255                -                      -                     48                       -                 -                             -                     
Miscellaneous income -                     2,700             -                     3,305                 -                 10,803                  6,500             

Total revenues 28,733          2,700             70,676          30,178               9,420        77,325                  6,500             

Expenditures:
Current:

General government -                     -                      -                     -                          -                 -                             -                     
Public safety 25,947          2,763             98,563          16,650               -                 -                             -                     
Public works -                     -                      -                     -                          -                 -                             -                     
Culture and recreation -                     -                      -                     -                          7,933        -                             1,907             
Health and welfare -                     -                      -                     -                          -                 -                             -                     
Capital outlay -                     -                      16,268          -                          -                 115,804                -                     
Debt service

Principal -                     -                      -                     15,203               -                 -                             -                     
Interest -                     -                      -                     1,289                 -                 -                             -                     

Total expenditures 25,947          2,763             114,831       33,142               7,933        115,804                1,907             

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 2,786             (63)                 (44,155)        (2,964)                1,487        (38,479)                 4,593             

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from debt issuance -                     -                      -                     -                          -                 -                             -                     
Transfers in -                     -                      17,669          -                          498            5,750                    -                     
Transfers out -                     -                      -                     -                          -                 -                             (6,221)           

Total other financing sources (uses): -                     -                      17,669          -                          498            5,750                    (6,221)           

Net change in fund balances 2,786             (63)                 (26,486)        (2,964)                1,985        (32,729)                 (1,628)           

Beginning fund balance 128,723        590                51,388          3,012                 (2,206)       32,260                  7,228             

Ending fund balance $ 131,509        527                24,902          48                       (221)          (469)                       5,600             

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Court 
Automation

Events 
Fund Stonegarden

School 
Resource 

Officer

 Youth 
Conservation 

Corps  Totals 
Revenues:

Taxes
Other $ -                       -                 -                         -                  -                           14,434       

Charges for services -                       10,610      -                         -                  -                           10,610       
Fines and forfeitures -                       -                 -                         -                  -                           30,503       
Intergovernmental revenue

Federal grants -                       -                 27,801              -                  -                           27,801       
State grants 838                  -                 -                         64,766       -                           222,588     

Interest income -                       -                 -                         -                  -                           303            
Miscellaneous income -                       943            -                         -                  450                      24,701       

Total revenues 838                  11,553      27,801              64,766       450                      330,940     

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safety -                       -                 15,457              74,299       -                           233,679     
Culture and recreation -                       -                 -                         -                  -                           9,840         
Capital outlay 1,143               31,039      -                         -                  -                           164,254     
Debt service

Principal -                       -                 -                         -                  -                           15,203       
Interest -                       -                 -                         -                  -                           1,289         

Total expenditures 1,143               31,039      15,457              74,299       -                           424,265     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures (305)                 (19,486)     12,344              (9,533)        450                      (93,325)      

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from debt issuance -                       -                 -                         -                  -                           -                  
Transfers in 3,613               16,006      1,325                 14,039       -                           58,900       
Transfers out -                       -                 (10,639)             -                  (450)                    (17,310)      

Total other financing sources (uses): 3,613               16,006      (9,314)               14,039       (450)                    41,590       

Net change in fund balances 3,308               (3,480)       3,030                 4,506         -                           (51,735)      

Beginning fund balance (3,308)             880            (3,030)               (1,390)        -                           214,147     

Ending fund balance $ -                       (2,600)       -                         3,116         -                           162,412     

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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 ICI Fund  Totals 
Revenues:

Intergovernmental revenue
State grants $ 17,810      17,810         
Total revenues 17,810      17,810         

Expenditures:
Current:
Capital outlay 111,630    111,630       

Total expenditures 111,630    111,630       

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (93,820)     (93,820)        

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 71,154      71,154         
Transfers out -                 -                    

Total other financing sources (uses): 71,154      71,154         

Net change in fund balances (22,666)     (22,666)        

Beginning fund balance 22,666      22,666         

Ending fund balance $ -                 -                    

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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 Fire Truck 
Loan  Totals 

Revenues:
Taxes

Gross receipts $ 37,040          37,040         
Interest income 479                479               

Total revenues 37,519          37,519         

Expenditures:
Current:

General government -                     -                    
Debt service

Principal 33,757          33,757         
Interest 3,284            3,284            

Total expenditures 37,041          37,041         

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 478                478               

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in -                     -                    
Transfers out -                     -                    

Total other financing sources (uses): -                     -                    

Net change in fund balances 478                478               

Beginning fund balance 38,906          38,906         

Ending fund balance $ 39,384          39,384         

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Balance 
6/30/2016 Receipts Disbursements

Balance 
6/30/2017

Municipal court bonds
Assets:
   Cash $ 11,685               11,523          (7,555)                       15,653                
   Due from general fund -                          -                     -                                 -                           
      Total assets $ 11,685               11,523          (7,555)                       15,653                
Liabilities:
   Refunds payable $ 4,589                 11,523          (7,555)                       8,557                  
   Held for others 7,096                 -                     -                                 7,096                  
      Total liabilities $ 11,685               11,523          (7,555)                       15,653                

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILTIES
AGENCY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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 General 
Fund 

 Fire 
Protection 

Fund 
 Town Hall 

Fund 

 Public 
Safety 

Building 
 Total Non-

Major Funds  Total Funds 
Fund Balances:

Nonspendable:
Subtotal nonspendable funds $ -                -                     -                -             -                     -                    

Restricted for:
Improvements to public safety building -                -                     -                -             -                     -                    
Improvements to Town Hall complex -                     790,963   -             -                     790,963       
Providing emergency medical services -                -                     -                -             527               527               
Fire fighting efforts/equipment -                12,631           -                -             24,902          37,533         
Public safety and law enforcement efforts -                -                     -                -             48                  48                 
Debt service requriments -                -                     -                -             39,384          39,384         

Subtotal restricted funds -                12,631           790,963   -             64,861          868,455       

Committed to:
DFA required reserves 121,038   -                     -                -             -                     121,038       
Operate/maintain recreational facilities -                -                     -                -             5,600            5,600           
Public safety and law enforcement efforts -                -                     -                -             134,625        134,625       

Subtotal committed funds 121,038   -                     -                -             140,225        261,263       

Assigned to:
Subtotal assigned funds -                -                     -                -             -                     -                    

Unassigned 107,693   -                     -                -             (3,290)           104,403       
$ 228,731   12,631           790,963   -             201,796        1,234,121    

Cap Projects

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

SCHEDULE OF FUND BALANCES
As of June 30, 2017

Major Funds

See independent auditor's report.
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Account name Type
First American 

Bank
NM Finance 

Authority
Plus Deposit in 

Transit
Less O/S  
Checks

Balance Per 
Books

General pooled cash CK* 804,337           -                        -                        804,337        
Clearing account CK* 52,462             -                        (104,091)         (51,629)         
Enterprise pooled cash CK* 628,909           1,155               -                        630,064        
Municipal court bonds CK* 21,053             -                        -                        21,053           
Reserve and Debt Service CK* 118,157           -                        -                        118,157        

Total cash and equivalents 1,506,761       118,157           1,155               (104,091)         1,521,982     

Total amount on deposit 1,506,761       118,157           1,155               (104,091)         1,521,982     
FDIC coverage (250,000)         -                        
Total uninsured public funds 1,256,761       118,157           

50% collateral requirement 628,381           59,079             
   (Section 6-10-17 NMSA-1978)

Pledge security 1,073,884       
See NMFA audited financials 118,157           
Amount (over)/under collateralized (445,504)         (59,079)            

* denotes interest bearing account

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

SCHEDULE OF DEPOSITORIES
As of June 30, 2017

See independent auditor's report.
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Cuspid
Description/

Maturity Coupon Moody
Pledged 
Percent

Original 
Face Par Book Value

Market 
Value

First National Bank
Safekeeping Location - FHLB: Fed Home Loan Bank

778544CP9 Roswell NM 3.55         Aa2 100% $ 325,000       325,000       325,000       325,579       
8/1/2018

914684DU6 University of New Mexico 2.00         A1 100% 250,000       250,000       253,363       253,903       
10/15/2021

781338HS0 Ruidoso Municipal Schools District 2.50         Aa1 100% 200,000       200,000       204,953       209,202       
8/1/2022

781346DQ1 Ruidoso NM Supplement 3.50         A1 100% 275,000       275,000       281,057       285,200       
6/1/2027

1,050,000   1,050,000   1,064,373   1,073,884   

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

SCHEDULE OF PLEDGED COLLATERAL BY DEPOSITORY
As of June 30, 2017

Pledged

See independent auditor's report.
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Inmate Housing 
Participants: County of Doña Ana and Town of Mesilla
Responsible party: County of Doña Ana 
Description This agreement was entered into to provide for the housing of prisoners at Doña Ana County

Detention Center
Period: Perpetual
Project costs: Town of Mesilla agrees to pay $87 per day per prisoner
Town contributions: Undeterminable
Audit responsibility: County of Doña Ana

Wildfire Management – Town of Mesilla
Participants: New Mexico Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources Department and Town of Mesilla
Responsible party: New Mexico Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources Department
Description This agreement is to document the commitment to wildfire suppression, protection

responsibilities, interagency cooperation and coordination, reimbursement for use of shared
resources on wildfires, mutual wildfire suppression, management assistance, cooperation and use
of federal excess property. 

Period: Perpetual
Project costs: Undeterminable
Town contributions: Undeterminable
Audit responsibility: New Mexico Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources Department

Master Fire Cooperative Agreement – Town of Mesilla
Participants: Bureau of Land Management, Department of Interior and Town of Mesilla
Responsible party: Bureau of Land Management, Department of Interior
Description To assist with local initial attack operations of short duration.  
Period: Perpetual
Project costs: Undeterminable
Town contributions: Undeterminable
Audit responsibility: Bureau of Land Management, Department of Interior

Mesilla Valley Regional Dispatch Authority (MVRDA)
Participants:

Village of Hatch, Doña Ana County (DAC), City of Las Cruces, Town of Mesilla, City of Sunland Park
Responsible party: DAC
Description:

DAC shall continue to provide space, utilities, and janitorial services for MVRDA, consistent with
DAC policies and procedures providing space and services for DAC entities.

Period: Perpetual
Project costs: Undeterminable
Town contributions: Undeterminable
Audit responsibility: MVRDA

New Mexico Taxation and Revenue Department (TDR)
Participants: Town of Mesilla and NM Taxation and Revenue Department
Responsible party: Town of Mesilla
Description:

TRD shall provide the Town with the forms and information necessary for the Town to register
those businesses operating within the Town for gross receipts tax reporting purposes.

Period: Perpetual
Project costs: Undeterminable
Town contributions: Undeterminable
Audit responsibility: Town of Mesilla

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

SCHEDULE OF JOINT POWERS AGREEEMENTS AND MEMORANDUMS OF UNDERSTANDING
As of June 30, 2017

See independent auditor's report.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TOWN OF MESILLA

SCHEDULE OF JOINT POWERS AGREEEMENTS AND MEMORANDUMS OF UNDERSTANDING
As of June 30, 2017

Doña Ana Office of the Flood Commissioner
Participants: Town of Mesilla and NM Taxation and Doña Ana Office of the Flood Commissioner
Responsible party: Doña Ana Office of the Flood Commissioner
Description: The Town shall continue to apply its policies and procedures for zoning ordinances and any other

applicable land use regulations. All enforcement of regulations, drainage requirements and
zoning ordinances remain with the Town. Doña Ana Flood Commission shall act as the Town's
flood plain administration agent by reviewing and recommending cases within the limits of the
Town's jurisdiction.

Period: Perpetual
Project costs: Undeterminable
Town contributions: Undeterminable
Audit responsibility: Town of Mesilla

See independent auditor's report.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 

AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
Independent Auditor’s Report 

 
Wayne Johnson, 
New Mexico State Auditor 
The Board of Trustees 
Town of Mesilla, New Mexico 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, and 
the budgetary comparisons of the general fund and major special revenue fund of the Town of Mesilla, 
State of New Mexico, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements and the combining and 
individual funds, presented as supplementary information, and have issued our report thereon dated 
December 13, 2017. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
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deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests did not disclose any instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
Integrity Accounting & Consulting, LLC 
Albuquerque, NM 
 
December 13, 2017 
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SECTION I SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 
 
Financial Statements: 
 

1. Type of auditors’ report issued   Unmodified 
 

1. Internal control over financial reporting: 
 

a. Material weakness identified?   No 
 
b. Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be material weaknesses? No 

 
c. Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted?  No 

 
d. Other noncompliance/other matters?  No 

 
SECTION II FINDINGS – FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

Status of
Current and Financial

Prior Year Statement
Finding Findings Finding
Prior Year Findings

2016-001  Bank Reconcil iations Resolved Yes

Current Year Findings
None

 
UNRESOLVED PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 
 
None. 
 
CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS 
 
None. 
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A. AUDITOR PREPARED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 
Presentation: The accompanying financial statements are the responsibility of the Town and are based 
on information from the Town’s financial records. Assistance was provided by Integrity Accounting & 
Consulting to the Town in preparing the financial statements.  
 
B. EXIT CONFERENCE  
 
The contents of the report for the Town of Mesilla were discussed on December 13, 2017. The following 
individuals were in attendance.  
 
Town of Mesilla Officials  

Nora L. Barraza, Mayor 
Carlos Arzabal, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Cynthia Stoehner-Hernandez, Town Clerk/Treasurer 
Gloria Maya, Deputy Treasurer 

 
Integrity Accounting & Consulting  

Erick Robinson, CPA, CFE Partner 
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Resolution 2018-02 
Authorization to write off bad debt/accounts receivables  

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Mesilla charges monthly utility rates to its residents; and, 
  
WHEREAS, the Town of Mesilla has on its books numerous delinquent accounts for past due 
payments; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Board recognizes that the likelihood of effectively collecting these outstanding 
debts is extremely minimal; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the delinquent accounts for outstanding payment are still maintained as available 
revenue on the accounts receivable ledgers of the Town of Mesilla; and, 
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Town’s Finance Staff and the Board to clean up the financial 
records and books of the Town of Mesilla and avoid the carry-over or accounts receivables as 
available revenue, which stand a minimal possibility of collection; and, 
 
WHERAS, the Board has determined that writing of delinquent accounts receivables would clear 
up the books and financial records of the Town; and, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the Town of Mesilla Board of Trustees 
does hereby authorize the Town Clerk/Treasurer to take appropriate action to write off the 
accounts listed on Exhibit “A” which is attached hereto and incorporated herein; and, 
 
RESOLVED by the Town of Mesilla Board of Trustees in regular session on the 12th day of 
February 2018. 
 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF TOWN OF MESILLA, NEW MEXICO 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Nora L. Barraza 
       Mayor 
Attest: 
     
 
______________________________ 
Cynthia Stoehner-Hernandez 
Town Clerk-Treasurer 
 

 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Mayor Pro Arzabal:   _____ 
Trustee Caro:    _____ 
Trustee Flores:   _____ 
Trustee Johnson-Burick:  _____ 
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1

cynthias-h@mesillanm.gov

From: Gloria Maya <gloriam@mesillanm.gov>
Sent: Friday, January 26, 2018 8:32 AM
To: Cynthia Stoehner-Hernandez
Subject: UTILITY WRITE-OFFS

Good morning, 

We have utility accounts that need to be written off.  Three of these were sent to collections with no results. 

Ferrell, Mona    $156.53 
Perea,  Steven   $72.80 
Gumbo Lilies           $92.16

Total: $321.49 

Thank you 

"Exhibit A"
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MEMORANDUM 

TO: MAYOR NORA L. BARRAZA AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
FROM: LARRY SHANNON, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COORDINATOR 
SUBJECT: ACTIVITY REPORT – JANUARY, 2018 
DATE: FEBRUARY 5, 2018 

 
 

PZHAC BUSINESS 
[Items presented to the PZHAC 

 
PZHAC WORK SESSION ITEMS: 

1. Submitted by Stefan C. Schafer, a request for a building permit to modify part of a medical/office building 
to house a craft distillery at 1680 Calle de Alvarez, Suite C1 (Case 060672). Zoned: General Commercial 
(C)   

2. Submitted by Rocky Burke; a request to discuss plans to renovate a dwelling at 1988 Calle del Norte, 
behind Andele’s Restaurant. (Case 060674). Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 

3.  Submitted by Gilbert Madrid of Sun Vista Construction, Inc. for Eric Sanchez; a request to discuss plans to 
replace six windows on a commercial structure at 2337 Calle de Guadalupe (Case 060675).  Zoned: 
Historical Commercial (HC).    

4. Submitted by Artie Fountain; a request to discuss requirements for various uses that might be allowed on 
the commercial property bordered by Calle Principal, Calle de Guadalupe, and Calle de Parian. Zoned: 
Historical Commercial (HR). 

5. Submitted by Daniel Fernandez, a request to discuss plans to construct a dwelling at 2985 Estrada Road. 
(Case 060684) Zoned: Residential/Agricultural (RA).   

6. Submitted by Stephan Cadena, a request to discuss plans to construct a dwelling on a property just west of a 
property at 2230 Calle del Sur. (Case 060685)  Zoned: Historical Residential (HR).  

7. Submitted by Ouida Touchon, a request to discuss plans to construct an adobe wall at 2615 Calle de 
Guadalupe. (Case 060686)  Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
 

 
PZHAC ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVALS: 
Building Permits 

1. Case 060663 – 2171 Calle de Parian, submitted by Albert Fountain; a request for a building permit to patch a 
roof on a commercial structure at this address. Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC ). 

2. Case 060664 – 2112 Calle de Los Huertos, submitted by Robert. P Salais; a request for a building permit to 
repair the woodwork around the doors and windows of a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historical 
Residential (HR). 

3. Case 060673 – 2716 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by Albert Fountain; a request for a building permit to 
repair and replace damaged vigas on a patio at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR). 

4. Case 060667– 2270/2280 Calle de Principal, submitted by Rubicon LLC for the San Albino Church; a 
request for a permit to reroof a church gift shop at this address.  Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC). 

5. Case 060668 – 2290 Calle de Principal, submitted by Rubicon LLC for the San Albino Church; a request for 
a permit to reroof a church rectory at this address.  Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC). 

6. Case 060669 – 2290 Calle de Guadapupe, submitted by Rubicon LLC for the San Albino Church; a request 
for a permit to reroof a church hall at this address.  Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC). 

7. Case  060670– 2070 Calle de Santiago, submitted by Rubicon LLC for the San Albino Church; a request for 
a permit to reroof a church at this address.  Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC). 

8. Case 060671 – 2550/2558 Calle de San Albino, requested by Richard Perez; a request for a building permit 
to run electricity to a storage shed at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR). 

9. Case 060677 – 2900 Bowman Street, submitted by Cale Robertson; a request for a building permit to chase 
and repair a clogged sewer line to a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Residential, one acre minimum (R-1). 

10. Case 060678 – 1799 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Dorianne J. Kabo; a request for a building permit to 
rock driveway apron with a cement apron. Zoned: General Commercial (C).  
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11. Case 060679 – 2920 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Dave Hooker; a request for a building permit to 
repaint a canopy over the gasoline islands at this address. Zoned: General Commercial (C). 

12. Case 060680 – 2320 Calle de Santa Ana, submitted by Julio Ramirez; a request for a permit to a natural gas 
line and meter on a dwelling at this address.  Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC). 

13. Case 060681 – 2716 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by Albert Fountain; a request for a permit to upgrade an 
electric panel on a dwelling at this address.  Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
 
 

PZHAC DECISION ITEMS: 
Building Permits 

1. Case 060653 – 2169 Calle de Medanos, submitted by Martin Serna for Little Fawn Boland, a request for a 
building permit to construct an addition to a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR).  

2. Case 060672 – 1680 Calle de Alvarez, Suite C1,submitted by Stefan C. Schafer, a request for a building 
permit to modify part of a medical/office building to house a craft distillery at this address. Zoned: General 
Commercial (C). (Discussed during Work Session) 

3. Case 060674 – 1988 Calle del Norte, submitted by Rocky Burke; a request to for a building permit to 
renovate a dwelling on the property line at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential. (Discussed during 
Work Session) 

4. Case 060675 – 2337 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by Gilbert Madrid of Sun Vista Construction, Inc. for 
Eric Sanchez; a request to for a building permit to replace six windows on a commercial structure at this 
address.  Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC).  (Discussed during Work Session) 

5. Case 060683 – 2750 Boldt Street, submitted by Solar Smart Living for Jerome Walker, a request for a 
building permit to allow the installation of solar photo-voltaic panels on the roof of a dwelling at this 
address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR). 

6. Case 060684 – 2985 Estrada Road, submitted by Daniel Fernandez; a request for a building permit to 
construct a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Residential/Agricultural (RA). (Discussed during Work 
Session) 

7. Case 060685 – a property just west of 2230 Calle del Sur, submitted by Steven Cadena; a request for a 
building permit to construct a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR). (Discussed 
during Work Session) 

8. Case 060686 – 2615 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by Ouida Touchon; a request to for a building permit to 
construct an adobe wall on the property line at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential. (Discussed 
during Work Session) 
 

Work Session Decision Items 
9. A property south of El Patio Bar; bordered by Calle Principal, Calle de Guadalupe, and Calle de Parian; 

submitted by Artie Fountain; a request for a decision as to what uses would be allowed on the property and 
what would be required. Zoned: Historical Commercial (HR). (Discussed during Work Session) 

 
Business Permits 

11. 2645 Calle del Sur, submitted by Ralph S. Lucero for RJR Enterprises, LLC; DBA “Lucero & Sons 
Plumbing, Heating and Cooling”;   a request for a business registration to operate an office out of a dwelling 
at this location as a home occupation.  Zoned: Historical Residential (HR).       

12. Registration 0711 – 2172 Calle de Santiago, submitted by Meghan M. Avilucea for “Salon de Mesilla”; a 
request for a business registration to operate as a hairdresser out of an existing salon at this address. Zoned: 
Historical Commercial (HC) 

13. Registration 0712 – 3150 McDowell Road, submitted by Carol Wortner for “Carol Wortner Fine Art”;  a 
request for a business registration to operate an art studio out of a dwelling  at this address. Zoned: 
Residential, one acre minimum (R-1).     

 
 
 
 
 

If you have any questions, comments or concerns please feel free to call me at  
524 -3262 ext. 104; or e-mail me at larrys@mesillanm.gov. 
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Town of Mesilla Assessor's Report 
JANUARY 2018 

Mesilla 
CASE # 

DAC 
ACC’T # 

APPL. 
DATE ISSUEE/CONTRACTOR 

 
VALUATION

/ COST  
 FEE  BLDG 

CODE ADDRESS DESCRIPTION OF WORK 

         
060671 04-00361 1/2/18 Richard Perez/Dynamic Industries 300.00 0.00 MI 2550/2558 Calle de San Albino Run electricity to a shed 

060672 04-01622 1/2/18 Stefan Schafer/Hayward Brown Const. 104,000.00 189.00 ALT 1680 Calle de Alvarez, Ste C2 
Modifications to an existing structure 

at this address to house a craft 
distillery operation. 

060673 04-00640 1/4/18 Al Fountain/Merlin Enterprises 450.00 9.00 MI 2716 Calle de Guadalupe Replace vigas on a patio on a dwelling 
at this address. 

060674 04-00262 1/9/18 Rocky Burke/Self 40,000.00 70.50 ADD 1988 Calle del Norte Refurbish an existing structure at this 
address and add a bathroom. 

060675 04-00321 1/9/18 Eric Sanchez/Sun Vista Construction Inc. 7,000.00 130.00 MISC. 2337 Calle de Guadalupe Replace six windows on a commercial 
structure at this address 

060677 04-00849 1/17/18 Cale Robertson/Self 1,000.00 10.50 MI 2900 Bowman Street Chase and repair a clogged sewer line 
at this address. 

060678 04-00314 1/18/18 Dorianne J Kabo/Rockhaven Rocks 3,000.00 80.00 MI 1801 S. Highway 28 Install a concrete driveway apron at 
this address./ 

060679 04-00679 1/19/18 Dave Hooker/Joseph Caruthers 1,475.00 68.00 MI 2920 Avenida de Mesilla Repaint a gas canopy at a gasoline 
station at this address. 

060680 04-00594 1/29/18 Julio Ramirez/Zia Natural Gas 2,000.00 19.50 MI 2320 Calle de Santa Ana Install a natural gas line to a dwelling 
at this address. 

060681 04-00640 1/30/18 Albert Fountain/Merlin Electric 3,000.00 15.00 MI 2716 Calle de Guadalupe Upgrade an electric box on a dwelling 
at this address. 

060682 04-00502, 04-
00508 1/31/18 Davie and Kelly Salas/Self 3,500.00 90.00 MI 2417 & 2419 Calle de Parian 

Build an adobe and latia wall at the 
front of these addresses, install a small 

shed 

060683 04-01026 1/18/18 Jerome walker/Solar Smart Living, LLC 9,000.00 22.50 MI 2750 Boldt Street Install solar phot-votaic panels on a 
dwelling at this address. 

060684 04-00466 1/19/18 Victoria Uranga/KT Homes 250,000.00 385.50 NR 2985 Estrada Road Build a new dwelling at this address. 

060685 04-00628 1/21/18 Steven Cadena/Self 54,000.00 91.50 NR 23230 Calle del Sur Build a new dwelling at this address. 

060686 04-00371 1/26/18 Ouida Touchon/Build-X, LLC TBD TBD MI 2615 Calle de Guadalupe Build an adobe wall on a property 
line. 
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Memorandum

To: Mayor and Trustees

From: Cynthia Stoehner-Hernandez
Town Clerk-Treasurer

RE: Monthly Finance Report

Listed below is a review of department and fund expenditures for: January
General Fund should be at: 58.33% spending

YTD $ Money YTD % Approved

EXPENDITURES %Exp.  YTD Mo.% over/under Budget

Finance/Admin. 66.44% $230,721 100.00% -33.56% 347,247$             

Judicial 54.65% $39,756 100.00% -45.35% 72,746$               

Marshal 85.74% $390,348 100.00% -14.26% 455,263$             

Fire 62.10% $74,562 100.00% -37.90% 120,061$             

Maintenance 61.97% $102,707 100.00% -38.03% 165,736$             

Exec./Legis. 30.99% $56,851 100.00% -69.01% 183,462$             

Comm. Programs 60.46% $60,084 100.00% -39.54% 99,386$               

Community Center/Plaza 100.59% $26,639 100.00% 0.59% 26,482$               

Comm. Development 46.54% $27,955 100.00% -53.46% 60,063$               

General Fund 65.97% $1,009,622 100.00% -34.03% 1,530,446$          

Water 58.21% $140,700 100.00% -41.79% 241,695$             

Wastewater 59.56% $100,561 100.00% -40.44% 168,839$             

Solidwaste 59.57% $139,382 100.00% -40.43% 233,994$             

Enterprise Fund 54.49% $380,644 100.00% -45.51% 698,528$             
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EXPENDITURES 

Finance/Admin., $230,721

Judicial, $39,756

Marshal, $390,348

Fire, $74,562

Maintenance
$97,448

Exec./Legis., $56,851

Comm. Programs, $60,084

Community Center/Plaza, 
$26,639

Comm. Development, 
$27,955

Water, $140,700

Wastewater, $100,561

Solidwaste, $139,382
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Please request the INCODE report for detail revenues and expenses by fund.

EXPENDITURES VS BUDGET
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137



YTD YTD YTD % AMOUNT

REVENUES % Rec. Money $ % Est. over/under BUDGETED

Taxes-Local 53.72% $327,642 100.00% -46.28% $609,863

Taxes-State 57.53% $275,928 100.00% -42.47% $479,592

Licenses&Permits 41.50% $16,598 100.00% -58.50% $40,000

Charges for Services 24.42% $20,758 100.00% -75.58% $85,000

Fines&Forefeits 25.72% $27,009 100.00% -74.28% $105,000

Misc. Revenues 37.59% $5,384 100.00% -62.41% $14,322

Inter-Gov. Grants 0.00% $0 100.00% -100.00% $200,554

General Fund 43.88% $673,319 100.00% -56.12% $1,534,331

Water 73.76% $186,366 100.00% -26.24% 252,650$             

Wastewater 67.26% $113,745 100.00% -32.74% 169,120$             

Solidwaste 60.70% $139,440 100.00% -39.30% 229,716$             

Enterprise Fund 67.47% $439,551 100.00% -32.53% $651,486
**MISC REV is high due in part to Finance staff clearing up the Audit finding on pooled cash
The increase corrected old journal entries that were done incorrectly from 2005- now.

REVENUE
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REVENUE vs BUDGET
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YTD REVENUES

Taxes‐Local, $327,642

Taxes‐State, $275,928

Licenses&Permits, $16,598
Charges for Services, 

$20,758

Fines&Forefeits, $27,009
Misc. Revenues, $5,384Inter‐Gov. Grants, $0

Water, $186,366

Wastewater, $113,745

Solidwaste, $139,440
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Jan-16 Jan-17 Net LYTD TYTD YTD Net
83,374                       87,803        4,429              608,561                          606,797               (1,764)                  

86530 16-Jul 88690 Jul-17
87196 AUG 90685 Aug.
82907 SEPT 82499 Sept
87202 OCT 89538 Oct
99923 nov 81078 Nov
81429 DEC 86504 Dec
83374 JAN 87803 Jan

103483 FEB Feb
73803 MAR Mar

75543 APR Apr
93216 MAY May
90532 JUNE June

2017

5% -0.3%

Total Contracts paid out of GRT per month (Fire Truck/Town Hall): 6,961.70$            

Percentage by month Percentage over last FYTD

Business GRT in NOVEMBER
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TOWN OF MESILLA FIRE DEPARTMENT
MONTHLY BOT REPORT

DATE: January 2018

 
 

MAJOR ADDITIONS TO INVENTORY 4 D cylinder oxygen bottles, battery operated grinder (extracation)
6 used UHF medical radios (replace outdated units)

MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT SCBA's tested, 3 repaired, 

COMMENTS MFD is preparing for another testing process for volunteers.  3 cadets passed their IFSAC
Firefighter I exams and are being promoted.  Two grants were applied for to obtain EMS
fund act monies and a Federal Assistance to Firefighters Grant for replacement
monitor/defibrillators.  Recruitment conitinues for EMTs to upstaff the Squad program.

SUBMITTED BY Fire Chief Kevin Hoban
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EVENT
TYPE

DATE EVENT NAME CATEGORY HOURS

01/02/2018 Night Shift Shifts 11
01/06/2018 Night Shift Shifts 1
01/07/2018 Night Shift Shifts 10
01/08/2018 Night Shift Shifts 12
01/11/2018 Night Shift Shifts 13
01/12/2018 Night Shift Shifts 10
01/15/2018 Night Shift Shifts 7
01/16/2018 Night Shift Shifts 9
01/17/2018 Night Shift Shifts 7
01/18/2018 Night Shift Shifts 5
01/19/2018 Night Shift Shifts 7
01/21/2018 Night Shift Shifts 3
01/22/2018 Shift Shifts 16
01/22/2018 Shift Shifts 14
01/22/2018 Shift Shifts 17
01/30/2018 Night Shift Shifts 12
02/01/2018 shift Shifts 12

166

01/02/2018 firefighter reviews and shift Shifts 6.5

01/04/2018 Day Shift Shifts 13
01/09/2018 Daily Shift Shifts 12Mesilla Fire  Scott Gafford, Humberto Manriquez

Total Hours for 12 Hour Night Shift:
12 Hour Day Shift

Station31  Ariel Caro, John Chavez, Gabriel Gil, 
Seriah Gore, Phillip Guzman, Lillian 

Mesilla Fire  Humberto Manriquez

St. 31  Gabriel Gil
Mesilla Fire  Ariel Caro, John Chavez, Scott 
station 31  John Chavez, Aaron Cruz, Phillip 

Mesilla Fire  Scott Gafford
St. 31  Phillip Guzman
St. 31  Scott Gafford

Mesilla Fire  Scott Gafford
Mesilla Fire  Scott Gafford
Mesilla Fire  Scott Gafford

Mesilla Fire  Humberto Manriquez
Mesilla Fire  Scott Gafford
Mesilla Fire  Scott Gafford, Humberto Manriquez

Mesilla Fire  Humberto Manriquez
Mesilla Fire  Humberto Manriquez
Mesilla Fire  Humberto Manriquez

LOCATION PARTICIPANTS

12 Hour Night Shift
Mesilla Fire  Humberto Manriquez
Mesilla Fire  Humberto Manriquez

Mesilla Fire Department
Mesilla, NM

This report was generated on 2/6/2018 10:31:57 AM

Events per Event Type for Date Range (Landscape)
Start Date: 01/01/2018 | End Date: 01/31/2018

 Only LOCKED events included. 

 emergencyreporting.com 
Doc Id: 753 

Page # 1 
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01/17/2018 Avail Shifts 3
01/22/2018 Shift Shifts 5

39.5

01/10/2018 SCBA Flow test Shifts 6
6

01/16/2018 On Call Shifts 4
01/17/2018 On Call Shifts 4
01/18/2018 On Call Shifts 4
01/19/2018 On Call Shifts 4
01/24/2018 On Call Duty Offcier Shifts 16
01/25/2018 On Call DO Shifts 24
01/26/2018 On Call Shifts 24
01/31/2018 On Call Duty Officer Shifts 10
01/31/2018 On Call Duty Officer Shifts 8

122

01/18/2018 Admin Shift Shifts 5.5
5.5

5
Total Hours for Administration  Shift:

Total Hours for Prevention Division Shift:

Total Hours for On Call Duty Officer:
Administration  Shift

Mesilla Fire  Chad Zecha

Station 31  Chad Zecha
Station 31  Chad Zecha
Telecommute  Chad Zecha

Scotts  Scott Gafford
Mesilla Fire  Chad Zecha
from Station 31  Chad Zecha

On Call Duty Officer
Scotts  Scott Gafford
Scotts  Scott Gafford
Scotts  Scott Gafford

Total Hours for 12 Hour Day Shift:
Special Assignment

Mesilla Fire  Scott Gafford
Total Hours for Special Assignment:

St31  Ariel Caro, Gabriel Gil
St. 31  Humberto Manriquez

 Only LOCKED events included. 

 emergencyreporting.com 
Doc Id: 753 

Page # 2 
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 Scott Gafford, Humberto Manriquez

12 Hour Day Shift
 Ariel Caro, John Chavez, Gabriel Gil, 
Seriah Gore, Phillip Guzman, Lillian 
 Humberto Manriquez

 Gabriel Gil
 Ariel Caro, John Chavez, Scott 
 John Chavez, Aaron Cruz, Phillip 

 Scott Gafford
 Phillip Guzman
 Scott Gafford

 Scott Gafford
 Scott Gafford
 Scott Gafford

 Humberto Manriquez
 Scott Gafford
 Scott Gafford, Humberto Manriquez

 Humberto Manriquez
 Humberto Manriquez
 Humberto Manriquez

PARTICIPANTS

12 Hour Night Shift
 Humberto Manriquez
 Humberto Manriquez

 Only LOCKED events included. 

 emergencyreporting.com 
Doc Id: 753 

Page # 3 
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Administration  Shift
 Chad Zecha

 Chad Zecha
 Chad Zecha
 Chad Zecha

 Scott Gafford
 Chad Zecha
 Chad Zecha

On Call Duty Officer
 Scott Gafford
 Scott Gafford
 Scott Gafford

Special Assignment
 Scott Gafford

 Ariel Caro, Gabriel Gil
 Humberto Manriquez

 Only LOCKED events included. 

 emergencyreporting.com 
Doc Id: 753 

Page # 4 
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Mesilla, NM
This report was generated on 2/6/2018 10:35:16 AM

Mesilla Fire Department

Breakdown by Major Incident Types for Date Range

MAJOR INCIDENT TYPE # INCIDENTS % of TOTAL
Fires 3 12.00%

Rescue & Emergency Medical Service 13 52.00%

Service Call 3 12.00%

Good Intent Call 6 24.00%

TOTAL 25 100.00%

Zone(s): All Zones | Start Date: 01/01/2018 | End Date: 01/31/2018

Doc Id: 553
emergencyreporting.com

Only REVIEWED incidents included.  Summary results for a major incident type are not displayed if the count is zero. 

Page # 1 of 2
147



Detailed Breakdown by Incident Type 

INCIDENT TYPE # INCIDENTS % of TOTAL
140 - Natural vegetation fire, other 1 4.00%
143 - Grass fire 2 8.00%
311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew 1 4.00%
321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury 11 44.00%
322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries 1 4.00%
554 - Assist invalid 1 4.00%
561 - Unauthorized burning 1 4.00%
571 - Cover assignment, standby, moveup 1 4.00%
611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 4 16.00%
631 - Authorized controlled burning 2 8.00%

TOTAL INCIDENTS: 25 100.00%

Doc Id: 553
emergencyreporting.com

Only REVIEWED incidents included.  Summary results for a major incident type are not displayed if the count is zero. 

Page # 2 of 2
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Mesilla, NM
This report was generated on 2/6/2018 10:04:19 AM

Mesilla Fire Department

Incident Type Count per Zone for Date Range

Start Date: 01/01/2018 | End Date: 01/31/2018

ZONES INCIDENT TYPE COUNT

31 - Town of Mesilla

140 - Natural vegetation fire, other 1

143 - Grass fire 1

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury 10

322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries 1

561 - Unauthorized burning 1

611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 3

631 - Authorized controlled burning 2

Total Incidents for 31 - Town of Mesilla: 19

60 - BLM Land

571 - Cover assignment, standby, moveup 1

Total Incidents for 60 - BLM Land: 1

D01 - Dona Ana

311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew 1

Total Incidents for D01 - Dona Ana: 1

D04 - La Mesa

611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 1

Total Incidents for D04 - La Mesa: 1

D12 - Fairacres

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury 1

Total Incidents for D12 - Fairacres: 1

Doc Id: 1404
emergencyreporting.com

Zone information is defined on the Basic Info 3 screen of an incident.
 Only REVIEWED incidents included.
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ZONES INCIDENT TYPE COUNT

D13 - South Valley

143 - Grass fire 1

554 - Assist invalid 1

Total Incidents for D13 - South Valley: 2

Total Count for all Zone: 25

Doc Id: 1404
emergencyreporting.com

Zone information is defined on the Basic Info 3 screen of an incident.
 Only REVIEWED incidents included.
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Mesilla, NM
This report was generated on 2/6/2018 2:09:00 PM

Mesilla Fire Department

Incident Detail for Aid Given and Received for Incident Type Range for Date Range

INCIDENT DATE INCIDENT # ADDRESS INCIDENT TYPE SHIFT

AID TYPE: Automatic aid received

01/07/2018 2018-00005 291  CAPRI RD 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury 31 - Mesilla Main Station

01/11/2018 2018-00007 1900 W UNIVERSITY AVE 322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries 31 - Mesilla Main Station

Percentage of Total Incidents: 8.00%

AID TYPE: Mutual aid given
01/18/2018 2018-00015 2954 N VALLEY DR 311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew 31 - Mesilla Main Station

Percentage of Total Incidents: 4.00%

AID TYPE: Mutual aid received

01/06/2018 2018-00004 2410  CALLE DE SAN ALBINO 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury 31 - Mesilla Main Station

01/13/2018 2018-00010 2600  AVENIDA DE MESILLA 611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 31 - Mesilla Main Station

01/14/2018 2018-00011 1575  SNOW RD 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury 31 - Mesilla Main Station

01/21/2018 2018-00019 2872  CALLE TERCERA 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury 31 - Mesilla Main Station

Percentage of Total Incidents: 16.00%

Incident Type Range: 100 - 911 | StartDate: 01/01/2018 | EndDate: 01/31/2018

Doc Id: 952
emergencyreporting.com

Displays all incidents with aid given or received, and excludes incidents with neither.  Percentages calculated from 
total number of incidents for parameters provided.  Only REVIEWED incidents included.

Page # 1 of 1
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Mesilla, NM
This report was generated on 2/6/2018 10:06:55 AM

Mesilla Fire Department

Response Activity Report
Start Date: 01/01/2018 | End Date: 01/31/2018

140 - Natural vegetation fire, other
Incident Date Alarm Arrival Response Address

2018-0000024 2018/01/26 18:27:10 18:42:19 00:15:09 2750  Valle Grande 

Subtotal Count 1 Average Response Time for Incident Type 00:15:09

143 - Grass fire
Incident Date Alarm Arrival Response Address

2018-0000021 2018/01/24 09:56:11 10:00:13 00:04:02 2251  Calle de Santiago 

2018-0000025 2018/01/31 18:51:34 19:02:19 00:10:45 2800  Nieve LN

Subtotal Count 2 Average Response Time for Incident Type 00:09:24

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury
Incident Date Alarm Arrival Response Address

2018-0000001 2018/01/01 19:37:05 19:42:48 00:05:43 2491  CALLE DE SANTA ANA 

2018-0000004 2018/01/06 20:43:35 20:51:32 00:07:57 2410  CALLE DE SAN ALBINO 

2018-0000005 2018/01/07 12:25:28 12:34:51 00:09:23 291  CAPRI RD

2018-0000006 2018/01/08 00:40:40 00:58:53 00:18:13   AVENIDA DE MESILLA 

2018-0000012 2018/01/16 15:45:26 15:55:30 00:10:04 1384  PAISANO RD

2018-0000013 2018/01/17 17:17:21 18:57:44 01:40:23 2670  Calle de Parian 

2018-0000014 2018/01/18 03:19:38 03:44:18 00:24:40 10060  SAN MARCOS CT

2018-0000019 2018/01/21 18:43:38 18:56:42 00:13:04 2872  CALLE TERCERA 

2018-0000020 2018/01/22 11:29:59 11:39:21 00:09:22 1300 W  UNIVERSITY AVE

2018-0000023 2018/01/26 18:12:21 18:16:22 00:04:01 2990  AVENIDA DE MESILLA 

Subtotal Count 10 Average Response Time for Incident Type 00:20:05

322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries

Doc Id: 1196
emergencyreporting.com

Calls by Incident Type.  Does not include calls where there was no response.

Page # 1
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Incident Date Alarm Arrival Response Address

2018-0000007 2018/01/11 12:27:28 12:41:02 00:13:34 1900 W  UNIVERSITY AVE

Subtotal Count 1 Average Response Time for Incident Type 00:13:34

554 - Assist invalid
Incident Date Alarm Arrival Response Address

2018-0000017 2018/01/18 19:22:04 19:39:31 00:17:27 3788  TIGUA DR

Subtotal Count 1 Average Response Time for Incident Type 00:17:27

561 - Unauthorized burning
Incident Date Alarm Arrival Response Address

2018-0000008 2018/01/11 20:48:07 21:01:27 00:13:20 2842  CALLE DE SAN ALBINO 

Subtotal Count 1 Average Response Time for Incident Type 00:13:20

631 - Authorized controlled burning
Incident Date Alarm Arrival Response Address

2018-0000003 2018/01/05 16:33:17 16:33:17 00:00:00 2300 W  UNION AVE

2018-0000022 2018/01/25 11:40:00 11:40:00 00:00:00 2410  SNOW RD

Subtotal Count 2 Average Response Time for Incident Type 00:00:00

Doc Id: 1196
emergencyreporting.com

Calls by Incident Type.  Does not include calls where there was no response.

Page # 2
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Zone

Fairacres
South Valley 7.52
Town of Mesilla
Town of Mesilla No Crew on Duty

Town of Mesilla Crew on Duty

AVERAGE RESPONSE TIME (in minutes)

4.35
NA

10.07

4.35

Mesilla Fire Department
Mesilla, NM

This report was generated on 02/06/2018

Response Mode: Lights and Sirens | Start Date: 11/01/2017 | End Date:11/30/2017

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

Fairacres South Valley Town of Mesilla

RESPONSE TIMES BY ZONE

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

Town of Mesilla No Crew on
Duty

Town of Mesilla Crew on Duty

MESILLA Response Times

 Only REVIEWED incidents included.Response Time is Dispatched to Arrived. 

 emergencyreporting.com 
Doc Id: 342 

Page # 1 of 3 
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Personnel Incident Time Training Time
Alderete, Robert  J 0:38 10:00

Caro, Ariel M 2:15 11:00
Chavez, John Eric 3:55 9:00
Corral, Jeremy A 0:38 9:30
Embury, Andy G. 7:05 9:30
Gafford, Scott J. 8:26 12:30

Gil, Gabriel A 0:45 3:00
Gomez, Elijah A 0:38 3:00
Gore, Seriah R 0:38 10:00

Guzman, Phillip 3:07 13:00
Manriquez, Humberto 9:03 2:00

Navarro, Nicolas A 0:38 4:00
Rivera, Matthew M 2:18 0:00

Shepan, Cory A. 0:38 0:00
Sinclair, Jennifer M 0:34 0:00

Smith, Morgan Samantha 0:38 8:30
Thunhorst, Dylan P 0:38 8:30
Villagrana, Diana C 0:38 3:00
Villazon, Lillian M 0:38 0:00
Whited, Gregory E 0:48 0:00
Willmann, Keenan 3:03 3:00

Zecha, Chad 2:23 3:00
TOTAL

6:50 12:53
87:50 93:13

0:00 3:38
6:50 7:28
6:50 7:38

0:00 0:34
0:00 9:08
0:00 9:08

0:00 2:18
0:00 0:38

108:00 119:03
0:00 4:38

0:00 3:38
6:50 17:28

34:50 50:57

0:00 16:35
96:00 116:56
26:50 30:35

21:50 35:05
18:50 31:45
0:00 10:08

Event Time Total Time
0:00 10:38

Mesilla Fire Department
Mesilla, NM

This report was generated on 2/6/2018 10:36:28 AM

Total Hours for Volunteers for Date Range
Pay Grades: All Pay Grades | Start Date: 01/01/2018 | End Date: 01/31/2018

 Personnel Total Hours by Time spent on Incidents and Time spent on Training Times for Date Range for Pay Grade, Time 
Cards are NOT included.  Time is displayed in hh:mm format. This report only includes Reviewed Incidents, Locked Events 

and
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593:48:00

12:53
93:13

3:38
7:28
7:38

0:34
9:08
9:08

2:18
0:38

119:03
4:38

3:38
17:28
50:57

16:35
116:56
30:35

35:05
31:45
10:08

Total Time
10:38

Total Hours for Volunteers for Date Range
Pay Grades: All Pay Grades | Start Date: 01/01/2018 | End Date: 01/31/2018

 Personnel Total Hours by Time spent on Incidents and Time spent on Training Times for Date Range for Pay Grade, Time 
Cards are NOT included.  Time is displayed in hh:mm format. This report only includes Reviewed Incidents, Locked Events 

and
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Mesilla, NM

This report was generated on 2/6/2018 10:34:27 AM

Mesilla Fire Department

Count of Classes by Personnel by Class Category

Alderete, Robert  J

Class Category Class Count Total Class Hours

EMS Training 1 3:00

I.S.O. New Recruit Training 2 7:00

Total for Alderete, Robert  J 3 10:00

Caro, Ariel M

Class Category Class Count Total Class Hours

I.S.O. New Recruit Training 4 11:00

Total for Caro, Ariel M 4 11:00

Chavez, John Eric

Class Category Class Count Total Class Hours

I.S.O. New Recruit Training 3 9:00

Total for Chavez, John Eric 3 9:00

Corral, Jeremy A

Class Category Class Count Total Class Hours

EMS Training 1 3:00

Fire Explorer Post 1 2:30

I.S.O. New Recruit Training 1 4:00

Total for Corral, Jeremy A 3 9:30

Embury, Andy G.

Class Category Class Count Total Class Hours

Fire Explorer Post 1 2:30

I.S.O. New Recruit Training 2 7:00

Total for Embury, Andy G. 3 9:30

Gafford, Scott J.

Class Category Class Count Total Class Hours

Fire Explorer Post 1 2:30

I.S.O. Company Training 1 1:00

I.S.O. New Recruit Training 3 9:00

Total for Gafford, Scott J. 5 12:30

Gil, Gabriel A

Class Category Class Count Total Class Hours

I.S.O. Company Training 1 1:00

I.S.O. New Recruit Training 1 2:00

Total for Gil, Gabriel A 2 3:00

Gomez, Elijah A

Class Category Class Count Total Class Hours

I.S.O. New Recruit Training 1 3:00

Passed/Failed: Both Passed and Failed | Personnel: All personnel | Start Date: 01/01/2018 | End Date: 01/31/2018

Doc Id: 1504
emergencyreporting.com

This report lists a count of Classes completed by each Person, for each Class Category.  Optionally filtered by 
Personnel and Passage or Failure. Time shown in Hours and Minutes

If "All Personnel" is selected, this report also includes non-agency Personnel. Page # 1 of 3
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https://secure.emergencyreporting.com//Reports/v2/results.php?function=lastreport&MultiPersonnel=552173&lastreportid=1504


Total for Gomez, Elijah A 1 3:00

Gore, Seriah R

Class Category Class Count Total Class Hours

EMS Training 1 3:00

I.S.O. New Recruit Training 2 7:00

Total for Gore, Seriah R 3 10:00

Guzman, Phillip

Class Category Class Count Total Class Hours

EMS Training 1 3:00

I.S.O. Company Training 1 1:00

I.S.O. New Recruit Training 3 9:00

Total for Guzman, Phillip 5 13:00

Hoban, Kevin M

Class Category Class Count Total Class Hours

I.S.O. Company Training 1 1:00

Total for Hoban, Kevin M 1 1:00

Manriquez, Humberto

Class Category Class Count Total Class Hours

I.S.O. New Recruit Training 1 2:00

Total for Manriquez, Humberto 1 2:00

Navarro, Nicolas A

Class Category Class Count Total Class Hours

I.S.O. New Recruit Training 1 4:00

Total for Navarro, Nicolas A 1 4:00

Smith, Morgan Samantha

Class Category Class Count Total Class Hours

EMS Training 1 3:00

Fire Explorer Post 1 2:30

I.S.O. New Recruit Training 1 3:00

Total for Smith, Morgan Samantha 3 8:30

Thunhorst, Dylan P

Class Category Class Count Total Class Hours

EMS Training 1 3:00

Fire Explorer Post 1 2:30

I.S.O. New Recruit Training 1 3:00

Total for Thunhorst, Dylan P 3 8:30

Villagrana, Diana C

Class Category Class Count Total Class Hours

I.S.O. New Recruit Training 1 3:00

Total for Villagrana, Diana C 1 3:00

Willmann, Keenan

Class Category Class Count Total Class Hours

I.S.O. New Recruit Training 1 3:00

Doc Id: 1504
emergencyreporting.com

This report lists a count of Classes completed by each Person, for each Class Category.  Optionally filtered by 
Personnel and Passage or Failure. Time shown in Hours and Minutes

If "All Personnel" is selected, this report also includes non-agency Personnel. Page # 2 of 3
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https://secure.emergencyreporting.com//Reports/v2/results.php?function=lastreport&MultiPersonnel=552174&lastreportid=1504
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https://secure.emergencyreporting.com//Reports/v2/results.php?function=lastreport&MultiPersonnel=531743&lastreportid=1504
https://secure.emergencyreporting.com//Reports/v2/results.php?function=lastreport&MultiPersonnel=354860&lastreportid=1504
https://secure.emergencyreporting.com//Reports/v2/results.php?function=lastreport&MultiPersonnel=529893&lastreportid=1504
https://secure.emergencyreporting.com//Reports/v2/results.php?function=lastreport&MultiPersonnel=529886&lastreportid=1504


Total for Willmann, Keenan 1 3:00

Zecha, Chad

Class Category Class Count Total Class Hours

I.S.O. New Recruit Training 1 3:00

Total for Zecha, Chad 1 3:00

Doc Id: 1504
emergencyreporting.com

This report lists a count of Classes completed by each Person, for each Class Category.  Optionally filtered by 
Personnel and Passage or Failure. Time shown in Hours and Minutes

If "All Personnel" is selected, this report also includes non-agency Personnel. Page # 3 of 3
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Date: February 5, 2018  

 

To:  Honorable Mayor and Mesilla Board of Trustees 

 

This is the Monthly Report for January 2018 for the Mesilla Marshal’s Department: 

 

Citations – 94                           

 

Total Responses/Calls for Service/Reports – 180 

 

Responses by sworn personnel: 

 

9-1-1 Hang-up Calls – 4 

Abandoned Vehicle – 1  

Agency Assist – 1 

Alarm, Burglary – 14 

Alarm, Panic – 0 

Animal Bite/Animal Attacks – 1 

Animal Care & Maint – 1  

Animal Control Calls – 4 

Animal Stray – 3  

Animal Vicious – 1  

Assault Report – 0 

ATV Complaint – 1 

Back Pain/Injury – 0 

Behavioral Issues – 0 

Be On the Lookout – 0 

Breathing Problems – 2 

Brush/Wildland Fire – 1  

Building Check – 0 

Burglary, Auto – 1  

Burglary in Progress – 0 

Burglary – 2  

Chest Pain – 0 

Child Abuse – 1  

Civil Dispute – 1 

Civil Process – 1  

Codes Enforcement – 1 

Cruelty to Animals – 0 

Detention Center Release – 1  

MESILLA MARSHAL DEPARTMENT 
 P.O. BOX 10 MESILLA, NM 88046 PHONE 575-526-4138FAX 575-525-8220 

 

 

Mar 
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Responses by sworn personnel (continued): 

 

Disturbance Domestic – 4 

Disturbance Domestic in Progress – 0 

Disturbance Fight – 1 

Disturbance Noise/Music – 5 

Disturbance Unknown – 0 

Disturbance Verbal – 1  

Drunk/Intoxicated Subj – 1  

DWI – 3  

Fall Victim – 0 

Fever – 1  

Fire Alarm – 1 

Fire Structure Residential – 1  

Forgery/Fraud/Emb/Report – 2 

Frequent Patrol – 2 

Gas Odor Natural – 0 

Gun – Subject with a gun – 1 

Harassment – 0 

Illegal Burn – 1 

Information Report – 9 

Illegally Parked Vehicle – 0 

Kidnapping/Unlawful Custody – 0  

Lift Assist – 0 

Medical Alarm – 1 

Minor in Possession of Alc. – 1  

Missing Adult – 0 

Missing Child – 0 

Motor Vehicle Accident non Injury – 2 

Narcotics/Drugs – 0 

Obstruction – 2 

Overdose – 1  

Phone Call – 4 

Prisoner Transport – 0  

Property Found – 0 

Public Assist – 1 

Rape – 1  

Reckless Driver – 1 

Recovered Property – 1  

Repossession/Private Property Impound – 0 

Runaway – 1 

Sick/Ill Person – 1  

Shots Fired – 0 

Suicide Attempt – 0 

Supplement/Follow up – 7 

Suspicious Activity – 8 
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Responses by sworn personnel (continued): 

 

Suspicious Persons – 2 

Suspicious Vehicles – 7 

Theft Report – 1  

Threats – 1  

Trespassing – 1  

Traffic – 59 

Unconscious Person – 0 

Vandalism/Graffiti – 1 

Warrant – 0 

Welfare Check – 1 

Wires Down – 0 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Operation Stone Garden was DISCONTINUED as to overtime; however, the objectives 

are remain supported and the equipment in use. 
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